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ABOUT US
InNature Berhad (the “Company” or “InNature”, and together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) is a leading regional retailer of cosmetics and personal care products
carrying The Body Shop and Natura brands, with an extensive network of 124
stores across West Malaysia, Sabah, Labuan, Vietnam and Cambodia as at 31
December 2020.
We have garnered over 36 years of experience operating The Body Shop
franchise business since our founder, Datin Mina Cheah Kim Choo opened
the first store in 1984 in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. Our Group was subsequently
awarded the franchise for Vietnam in 2009, and for Cambodia in 2018.
In collaboration with Natura Cosmeticos SA, the Group introduced the Natura
beauty brand to Malaysia in 2019 to expand our brand portfolio as well as
to strengthen our leadership and market share in the naturals sector of the
cosmetics and personal care industry.

OUR VISION

AND VALUES

We aim to grow our business in Malaysia, Vietnam and Cambodia by offering sustainable,
holistic solutions to our customers, whilst developing the social enterprise for all
stakeholders.
Our Group believes in business as a force for good, and this has been embodied in
every aspect of our business processes and operations. We believe that as corporate
citizens, we possess the power to make a difference. From the communities which we
trade with, to the colleagues we work with, to customers we engage with; each one
represents an opportunity to change, to inform, and to inspire through education. And
through education, we aspire to progress greater equality of rights and opportunities.
Creating shared value through sustainable practices and using our position to campaign
for social and environmental change, has always been our guiding principle.
We have always believed that our Group has an active role to play in our society, because
through our retail stores and our social media, we are able to reach out to our consumers
to create awareness on social and environmental issues, and to speak out and effect
social and environmental change. Over the years, we have organised numerous social
and environmental campaigns covering wide-ranging of issues from domestic violence
to saving Malayan tiger.
More details about our social and environmental campaigns can be found at page 27
of this Annual Report.
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GROUP STRUCTURE

INNATURE BERHAD

Hello Natural
Sdn Bhd

100%

100%

100%

MALAYSIAN
SUBSIDIARIES

VIETNAM
SUBSIDIARY

CAMBODIA
SUBSIDIARY

Ola Beleza
Sdn Bhd

Rampai-Niaga
Sdn Bhd

TBS Vietnam
Company Limited

Green Cosmetics
(Cambodia)
Company Limited

Dormant

Distribution of
Natura products
through channels
including direct
selling,
e-commerce and
retail stores

Retailing and
distribution of
The Body Shop
products in West
Malaysia, Sabah
and Labuan

Retailing and
distribution of
The Body Shop
products in
Vietnam

Retailing and
distribution of
The Body Shop
products in
Cambodia
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OUR BRANDS

THE BODY SHOP

NATURA

Founded in 1976 in Brighton, England, by Dame Anita
Roddick, The Body Shop seeks to offer high-quality,
naturally inspired skincare, body care, hair care and makeup produced ethically and sustainably. It is one of the first
brands in the world to embrace environmental and social
consciousness which has resulted in The Body Shop
enjoying a high brand awareness and trust from consumers
worldwide. There are currently over 2,500 The Body Shop
stores globally, spanning across Europe, North and South
America, the Middle East, South Africa and Asia. The Body
Shop International is part of Natura & Co, which also owns
the Natura, Aesop and Avon brand of cosmetics and
personal care products.

Natura was founded in 1969 in Brazil, and apart from being
the country’s leading beauty brand, it is also present in
Latin America as well as USA and France. Natura develops
personal care products which combines Brazil’s unique
biodiversity with science and innovation, according to
Natura’s philosophy of “bem estar bem” (“well being well“),
which is a concept of the harmonious relationship of oneself
with his/her body, with others, and with nature. In pursuit
of its sustainable values, Natura works with suppliers to
reduce the environmental impact of its products, such
as increasing the use of recycled materials in product
packaging, and to use sustainable production techniques
which preserve the ecosystem of the Amazon forest.
Over 80% of the product formulas are plant-based, and
therefore, renewable. Today, with a network of 1.7 million
consultants, Natura delivers exclusive and sustainable
innovation by combining the power of nature and stateof-the-art science, in more than 2,000 products and over
7,000 formulas, 45 company-owned stores, products in
3,800 pharmacies and a market leading online platform.
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KEY MILESTONES

2020

- Listed on Main Market of Bursa Securities
- Commenced The Body Shop e-commerce in Cambodia
- Opened 1st Natura store in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

2019

- Opened 1st The Body Shop store in Phnom Penh, Cambodia
- Signed Natura MOU, commenced Natura multichannel operation

2018

- Awarded The Body Shop franchise for Cambodia

2015

- Awarded The Body Shop franchise for Sabah and Labuan, Malaysia
- Acquired Sabah and Labuan stores from previous
franchise holder

2013

- Commenced The Body Shop e-commerce in Vietnam

2012

- Commenced The Body Shop e-commerce in Malaysia

2009

- Awarded The Body Shop franchise for Vietnam
- Opened 1st The Body Shop store in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

1984

- Awarded The Body Shop franchise in West Malaysia
- Opened 1st The Body Shop store in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
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THE GROUP IN KEY FIGURES

1

ST

publicly listed
The Body Shop
franchise globally

3

2
cruelty-free natural
beauty brands

36

countries in operation

years of retail experience

80%

124

women directors, key
senior management
and employees

retail stores as at 31
December 2020
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The Group in Key Figures (continued)

A resilient business even during the most challenging times

Revenue, Gross Profit and Core Profit After Tax ("PAT")
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Note: Core PAT excludes fair value loss on other investments (2016 and 2017), impairment loss on other
investments (2017), fair value gain arising from distribution of non-cash assets to owners and real property
gain tax thereon (2018), and listing related expenses (2019 and 2020).

A solid balance sheet

Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
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INSTANTLY PURIFY
BLEMISHED SKIN
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It only takes a couple of drops
to live fearlessly every day.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM LEFT
MOLLY FONG HUI SAIN
Non-Independent Executive Director/
Chief Executive Officer

DATIN MINA CHEAH KIM CHOO
Non-Independent Executive Director/
Managing Director

TENGKU DATIN PADUKA SETIA
ZATASHAH BINTI SULTAN
SHARAFUDDIN IDRIS SHAH
Independent Non-Executive Director

DATO’ MAZNAH BINTI ABDUL JALIL
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

DATO’ SIMON
FOONG CHOONG HENG
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

DARYL FOONG CHUEN HOE
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Alternate Director to Dato’ Simon Foong Choong Heng
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Experience:
Dato’ Simon began his career with PMI Compex EDP (M) Sdn
Bhd, a company involved in the distribution of Apple computers,
where he was a Marketing Manager from 1982 to 1983. In 1984,
he joined Jurudata Sdn Bhd as their Sales and Marketing Manager
before leaving in 1991 to join Komtel Sdn Bhd (“Komtel”) as its
General Manager in charge of the management of business
operations, dealership and expansion of its business.
Dato’ Simon left Komtel in 1994 and took on the role of Director
at Rampai-Niaga Sdn Bhd (“Rampai-Niaga”) in 1995, where
he was responsible for the overall direction of the franchise
business, a position he held until 2003. After Rampai-Niaga was
disposed to Kejora Harta Berhad (“Kejora Harta”), a company
then involved in investment holding and property development,
Dato’ Simon served as an Executive Director of Kejora Harta
where he provided the overall direction for the development
and expansion of Rampai-Niaga’s franchise business from 2004
until 2006. Dato’ Simon was also re-appointed as a director
of Rampai-Niaga in November 2004. In November 2006 when
Kejora Harta disposed its shares in Rampai-Niaga to our
Company, Dato’ Simon left his position at Kejora Harta and
resumed his role as a Director of Rampai-Niaga until to-date.

DATO’ SIMON FOONG CHOONG HENG
Non-Independent
Non-Executive Chairman
Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 66
: Male

Qualification:
Dato’ Simon Foong Choong Heng (“Dato’
Simon”) was appointed to the Board on 21
October 1994. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) degree in Business Studies,
from Ulster Polytechnic, now part of Ulster
University, United Kingdom, obtained
in 1981. He also completed the Senior
Management Development Program by
Harvard Business School Alumni Club of
Malaysia in 1994.
Dato’ Simon is a member of the Audit and
Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”)
and Nominating and Remuneration
Committee (“NRC”).
He attended all six (6) Board Meetings
held during the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

Dato’ Simon is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Aquawalk Sdn Bhd, a company which owns and
operates Aquaria Kuala Lumpur City Centre, Malaysia and
Aquaria Phuket, Thailand. He is also the co-founder and Group
Managing Director of Senja Aman Holdings Sdn Bhd group of
companies (“Senja Aman Group”). The Senja Aman Group is
principally involved in property development, and has developed
a luxury hotel and wellness resort in Penang, Malaysia.
Dato’ Simon was previously a committee member for the
Cosmetic, Toiletry and Fragrance Association of Malaysia; the
Vice Chairman and Trustee of the PT Foundation (previously
known as Pink Triangle Sdn Bhd); the President of the Malaysian
Association of Amusement Themepark and Family Attractions;
and a member of the Advisory Board of Kuala Lumpur Tourism
Bureau.
In December 2018, Dato’ Simon was awarded Tatler’s Diamond
of Excellence award by Malaysia Tatler, to recognise the positive
impact he made in the country’s retail and tourism industry and
his efforts in helping to elevating the industry standards over the
years.
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Profile of Directors (continued)

Experience:
Datin Mina has more than 30 years of experience, both in
retail as well as the cosmetics and toiletries industry. She is
instrumental in providing strategic vision and growth strategies
to our Group as well as ensuring the successful implementation
of our Group’s strategy and growth plans. Upon her return to
Malaysia in 1982, she worked at Hewlett Packard from 1983
to 1984 as a Systems Engineer before starting The Body Shop
franchise business in West Malaysia when she opened the first
The Body Shop point-of-sale in December 1984. Since then she
has grown our Group from a single store to a multi-million ringgit
business. She continues to actively shape the strategic direction
and development of our Group’s business, and promote the
Group’s values on environment, human rights and women’s
rights.

DATIN MINA CHEAH KIM CHOO
Non-Independent Executive Director/
Managing Director
Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 61
: Female

Qualification:
Datin Mina Cheah Kim Choo (“Datin
Mina”) was appointed to the Board on
21 October 1994. She obtained her
Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in
Computational Science and Management
Studies from University of Leeds, UK in
1982.
She attended all six (6) Board Meetings
held during the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

Datin Mina was a member of the Board of Trustees of the
Malaysian AIDS Foundation from 2000 to 2012 and held
the position of Honorary Secretary from 2006 until 2012.
She was invited to participate in the Malaysian Government
Transformation Programme in 2012 and became the Laboratory
Leader who was instrumental in developing the National Key
Economic Areas for Wholesale and Retail. She is currently the
Honorary Auditor for the Bukit Bintang Kuala Lumpur City Centre
Tourism Association, a position she held since 2017.
Datin Mina accepted the Prime Minister’s Corporate Social
Responsibility Award on behalf of Rampai-Niaga in 2007 for its
outstanding work in the small company category and again in
2009 for the contributions made towards the empowerment of
women. In 2014, Forbes named Datin Mina as one of its ‘Heroes
of Philanthropy’. More recently, her contributions were again
recognised when she was honoured with the Patron’s award
at the Malaysian AIDS Foundation Tun Dr Siti Hasmah Award
2018 for her dedicated long service with the Malaysian AIDS
Foundation. Her corporate philosophy of active citizenship and
community care is evident in the campaigns that our Group has
initiated and it exemplifies her belief of “business as a force for
good”.
In the past 10 years, Datin Mina climbed to Base Camp Everest,
summited Mount Kilimanjaro, trekked along the Kalahari
Desert and rafted through 41 rapids on the Zambesi River.
These achievements demonstrate Datin Mina’s entrepreneurial
character in taking up new challenges, and steadfast leadership
of our Group.
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Profile of Directors (continued)

Experience:
Dato’ Maznah began her career with Amanah Merchant Bank
Berhad in 1979, where she spent 13 years as an officer in
corporate banking and project financing and later a Manager
in the corporate finance department. In 1992, she joined
Master Carriage (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd as the Executive Director
of Corporate Affairs. She was also appointed as a director of
Diversified Resources Berhad (“DRB”) (now known as DRBHICOM Berhad (“DRB-HICOM”) in 1992 of which she held the
directorship until 2005.
She served on the board of UOB Bank (Malaysia) Berhad from
2006 to 2007. Thereafter she joined Hong Leong Financial Group
Berhad as the Head, Corporate Finance and Principal Investment
from 2007 to 2008. She then moved to Kenanga Investment
Bank Berhad in 2009 as the Executive Vice President, Corporate
Finance Advisory.

DATO’ MAZNAH BINTI ABDUL JALIL
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 67
: Female

Qualification:
Dato’ Maznah Binti Abdul Jalil (“Dato’
Maznah”) graduated with a Bachelor
of Science in Business Administration
from the Northern Illinois University,
United States of America (USA) in 1977,
and Masters of Science in Business
Administration (Finance) from the Central
Michigan University, USA in 1979.

In 2011, she left Kenanga Investment Bank Berhad to join
SCS Global Advisory (M) Sdn Bhd (formerly known as Moore
Stephens AC Advisory Sdn Bhd) as the Chairman, a position
she holds till to-date. In 2012, she joined Sona Petroleum
Berhad (a special purpose acquisition company which is now
dissolved) as the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
up till dissolution of the company in 2019. In addition, she was
formerly a Chairman of Uni. Asia General Insurance Berhad (now
known as Liberty Insurance Berhad) group of companies and
Uni. Asia Life Assurance Berhad (now known as Gibraltar BSN
Life Berhad).
In the past, Dato’ Maznah had served on the boards of Felcra
Berhad, Edaran Otomobil Nasional Berhad, EON Capital Berhad
(now known as Amity Bond Sdn Bhd), EON Bank Berhad (now
Promino Sdn Bhd), Gadek (Malaysia) Berhad, HICOM Holdings
Berhad, Horsedale Development Berhad, Labuan Reinsurance
(L) Ltd and Malaysian International Merchant Bankers Berhad
(now Hong Leong Investment Bank Berhad). She was also
formerly a Director of Universiti Teknologi Mara.

Dato’ Maznah is the Chairperson for both
the ARMC and NRC.

Presently, Dato’ Maznah is a non-executive board member
of Lembaga Tabung Angkatan Tentera and the Independent
Non-Executive Director of Opus Asset Management Sdn Bhd.
She is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Pavilion
Real Estate Investment Trust as well as holding directorship in
Boustead Heavy Industries Corporation Berhad and Malayan
Flour Mills Berhad.

She attended all six (6) Board Meetings
held during the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

Dato’ Maznah is also a member of the Asian Strategy &
Leadership Institute (“ASLI”), and a member of the Corporate
Malaysian Roundtable, ASLI.
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Profile of Directors (continued)

Experience:
Tengku Zatashah started her career as an Accounts Executive
Trainee in BDDP Barcelona, an advertising agency in Barcelona,
Spain in 1995. In 2001, she returned to Malaysia and joined the
New Straits Times, Malaysia, as a feature journalist from 2001
to 2003. Tengku Zatashah subsequently moved to Paris, France
in 2004 and served until 2009 as the International Corporate
Communications Manager of L’Oréal SA at its headquarters in
Paris, France.
In 2009, she left L’Oreal SA and co-founded Originalo Sdn
Bhd, a leisure travel gift box company and served as the
Managing Director until 2014. From 2009 to 2014, she was also
a contributing columnist for The Edge, Malaysia in its “Princess
@work” column, as well as The Peak Malaysia in its “Jetsetter”
and “Design Diary” columns.
She has been the Chairperson of Light Cibles Sdn Bhd, an
international lighting design consultancy firm since 2012, and
a Senior Advisor of Klareco Communications (formerly Bell
Pottinger Malaysia), a regional communications agency since
2015, both positions of which she holds till to-date.

TENGKU DATIN PADUKA SETIA ZATASHAH
BINTI SULTAN SHARAFUDDIN IDRIS SHAH
Independent Non-Executive Director
Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 47
: Female

Qualification:
Tengku Datin Paduka Setia Zatashah Binti
Sultan Sharafuddin Idris Shah (“Tengku
Zatashah”) graduated with a Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) degree in Spanish
with French Studies from Middlesex
University, UK in 1997, and subsequently
she obtained the Certificate of Language
and French Civilisation from Sorbonne
University, Paris, France in 2001. Tengku
Zatashah then obtained a Master’s degree
in International Relations and Diplomacy
and graduated Magna Cum Laude from
the American Graduate School in Paris,
France in 2007. She completed the Women
Directorship Programme organised by the
NAM institute for the Empowerment of
Women Malaysia in 2013. In 2014, she
completed the Finance for Executives
Programme from Insead Business School
in Singapore.
Tengku Zatashah is a member of the
ARMC and NRC.
She attended all six (6) Board Meetings
held during the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

She is presently the President of Alliance Francaise de Kuala
Lumpur a position; the Royal Patron to Make-A-Wish Malaysia; a
member of Board of Trustee for the Selangor Youth Community;
a member of Board of Trustee for Yayasan Raja Muda Selangor;
as well as a member of Board of Trustee for Yayasan Food Bank
Malaysia. In addition, she is also a founding member of the
Foundation Board of The Alice Smith School Foundation.
In 2017, Tengku Zatashah was awarded France’s highest award
Legion d’Honneur, as Chavalier Legion d’Honneur (Knight of
the Legion of Honour) signifying recognition from the French
government for her contribution as the President of Alliance
Francaise de Kuala Lumpur. In Malaysia, she was awarded
Ikon Wanita (Woman Icon) in the Year of Women Empowerment
2018 campaign launched by the Ministry of Women, Family and
Community Development, Malaysia.
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Profile of Directors (continued)

Experience:
She started her career with Prosell Sdn Bhd, a below-the-line
advertising agency as an Administration Executive in 1992.
She left Prosell Sdn Bhd in 1995 to join Rampai-Niaga as a
Communications Executive. From 1995 to 2003, she worked
in various departments within Rampai-Niaga, from marketing
and commercial, brand management, visual merchandising and
store development, retail operations and sales management,
to business development and was promoted as our General
Manager in 2003. In 2009, Molly Fong played a vital role to
lead the team in starting up the operations in Vietnam. She
was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of Rampai-Niaga
in 2011, and subsequently in January 2019, she assumed her
present role as our Chief Executive Officer. Currently, Molly is
responsible for the overall strategic direction and management
of the Group’s business operations.
Throughout her tenure with our Group, Molly’s passion for the
brands’ values and her belief in “profits with principles” remain
steadfast. She continues to ensure that positive social and
environmental change remains high on the agenda of our Group.

MOLLY FONG HUI SAIN
Non-Independent Executive Director/
Chief Executive Officer
Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 49
: Female

Qualification:
Molly Fong Hui Sain (“Molly”) was
appointed to the Board on 27 February
2019. She obtained her General Certificate
of Education Advanced Level in 1990 and
subsequently she pursued the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
(“ICSA”) programme and was admitted
to the ICSA in 1999. She also obtained a
Master of Business Administration degree
from The University of Nottingham, UK,
in 2013. She was named the University
of Nottingham - Malaysia Campus 2013
“Alumnus of the Year” at the Alumni
Laureate Award ceremony held in Kuala
Lumpur in 2013.
She attended all six (6) Board Meetings
held during the financial year ended 31
December 2020.
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Profile of Directors (continued)

Experience:
Daryl Foong has 10 years of experience working in the fastmoving consumer goods, retail and entertainment industries. He
began his career as a Public Relations Executive in RAPR Mileage
Communications Sdn Bhd in 2009 where he was responsible for
public and media relations client servicing. Subsequently, he left
to join L’Oréal Malaysia Sdn Bhd (“L’Oréal Malaysia”) as Product
Executive in 2010.
In 2012, he left L’Oréal Malaysia to join Rampai-Niaga as
Marketing Manager. In 2015, he was promoted as the Digital and
Loyalty Manager. In this role, he was involved in implementing
and managing our Customer Relationship Management loyalty
programme, online store, our brand social media activities,
public relations, and advertising campaigns across all platforms.
He was subsequently re-designated to be Rampai-Niaga’s
Business Development Manager in 2015 and his portfolio
expanded to include identifying and establishing new profitable
business locations, managing the company’s exit from
unprofitable locations, managing rental renewals, maintaining a
working relationship with the landlords and mall management,
maintaining and managing the leasing process, and overseeing
leasing budget and store profitability.

DARYL FOONG CHUEN HOE
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Alternate Director to Dato’ Simon
Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 34
: Male

In 2016, Daryl Foong left Rampai-Niaga to join Aquawalk as
the Head of Sales and Marketing Department overseeing the
company’s Education, Visual, and Creative departments. He
was promoted as the General Manager in 2018 and appointed
to his current position in April 2019 as an Executive Director of
Aquawalk. He is responsible for overseeing Aquawalk’s overall
business activities and financial performances.

Qualification:
Daryl Foong Chuen Hoe (“Daryl Foong”)
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Marketing
from RMIT University, Australia, awarded
in 2009.
He is the alternate director to Dato’
Simon Foong, the Non-Independent NonExecutive Chairman of the Company.

Note:
•

Save for Dato’ Simon, Datin Mina and Daryl Foong who are a family, no director has any family relationships with
any other directors and/or major shareholders of the Company. Dato’ Simon and Datin Mina are husband and wife,
and Daryl Foong is their son.

•

Save for Dato’ Maznah and Tengku Zatashah who have disclosed their directorships as mentioned above, the rest
of the directors of the Company do not have any directorship in public companies and listed issuers.

•

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in this Annual Report, no director has any conflict of interest with
the Company.

•

No director has been convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences, if any.
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Profile of Key Senior Management

JESSE SIEW LAI LENG
Nationality
Age
Gender

MAE CHAN NIAN MEI
: Malaysian
: 48
: Female

Nationality
Age
Gender

CHIA CANG YANG
: Malaysian
: 49
: Female

Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 38
: Male

Qualification:

Qualification:

Qualification:

Jesse Siew Lai Leng (“Jesse”)
graduated from the National
University of Malaysia, Malaysia in
1996, with a Bachelor of Business
Administration
(First
Class
Honours) degree in marketing. She
obtained her Master of Business
Administration degree from the
University of Nottingham, UK, in
2014.

Mae Chan Nian Mei (“Mae”)
graduated
with
a
Diploma
in Professional Training and
Development from the University of
Malaya, Malaysia in 2001. She also
obtained an Advanced Certificate
in Marketing from Sunway College,
Malaysia, in 1998.

Chia Cang Yang (“Cang Yang”)
graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Accountancy from Universiti
Utara Malaysia in 2006. He is a
member of CPA Australia since
2011, and a Chartered Accountant
with the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants since 2012.

Experience:

Experience:

Experience:

Mae is our Chief Revenue Officer
and is responsible for the overall
growth and management of retail
sales operations and business
development of our Group.

Cang Yang is our Chief Financial
Officer
and
is
responsible
for the overall finance and
corporate functions of our Group
including
financial
reporting,
risk management, governance,
corporate planning, and investor
relations.

Jesse is our Chief Operations
Officer responsible for managing
the digital marketing and directing
the operations and management
of the support departments of our
Group, including the product and
promotions, supply chain, logistics
and
information
technology
departments.
In 1996, Jesse started her career
with Tung Pao Sdn Bhd, a local
distributor for brands such as
Shiseido, ZA, Wacoal, Zotos
and Caritas as an Advertising
and Public Relations Executive
responsible for public relations and
branding events for the various
brands distributed by the company.
She left Tung Pao Sdn Bhd in 1998
to join Rampai-Niaga as our Public
Relations and Communications
Executive.
She
was
later
promoted to be the Marketing
Communications Manager in 2001
and Chief Operations Officer in
2011 in Rampai-Niaga.
In 2019, she took up her current
position in the Group as our Chief
Operations Officer. Jesse has
organised and led numerous brand
and values campaigns for The Body
Shop contributing to Rampai-Niaga
being awarded the Prime Minister’s
Corporate Social Responsibility
Award in 2007 and 2009.

Mae joined the workforce in 1990
as a Marketing Executive in KFC
Holdings Malaysia Berhad, and
was responsible for executing
marketing
and
customer
relationship events. She left KFC
Holdings Malaysia Berhad in
1992 to join Rampai-Niaga as an
Assistant Shop Manager tasked
to oversee store sales growth,
achievement of key performance
targets, store operations including
service standards, store display
and inventory control. She later
progressed into our Learning
and Development department in
1995. She was promoted to be
our Learning and Development
Manager in 2002 and subsequently
as our Retail Manager in 2006. Her
29 years of experience working in
our Group entailing shop operations
and staff training, has given her
immense experience and expertise
in managing retail sales, store
operations, talent development and
customer service.
In 2011, Mae was appointed as the
Chief Revenue Officer of RampaiNiaga and subsequently took up her
current position as Chief Revenue
Officer of our Group in 2019.

Cang Yang has 15 years of
experience in the field of finance and
accounting. He started his career
with Ernst & Young Malaysia as an
Audit Associate in June 2006, and
left as Audit Manager in November
2012 to begin his career in the retail
industry as the Finance Manager
of Parkson Retail Asia Limited
(“Parkson”), a Singapore listed
department store operator with
presence in Malaysia, Indonesia,
and Vietnam. He was subsequently
appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of Parkson from January
2017 to October 2018.
Cang Yang joined us as the Director
of Corporate Finance & Governance
in November 2018. He was redesignated as the Chief Financial
Officer in May 2019.
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Profile of Key Senior Management (continued)

NGUYEN THI NGOC HUE
Nationality
Age
Gender

: Vietnames
: 45
: Female

Qualification:
Nguyen Thi Ngoc Hue (“Lily”)
graduated from the University
of Economics, HCMC, Vietnam
with a Bachelor of Economics
and
Mathematics
Department
degree in 1997. She was also
awarded the Chief Accountant
Certificate by the same university
in July 1997 after completing the
chief accounting course. In 2010,
she was awarded the Master of
Business Administration (Executive
MBA) degree from the University of
Hawaii, Hawaii, USA.
Experience:
Lily is the Senior General Manager of
TBS Vietnam and Green Cosmetics
Cambodia. She is responsible for
the overall management and growth
of The Body Shop brand in Vietnam
and Cambodia through building a
team of professionals to drive the
The Body Shop brand’s market
penetration and grow market share
profitably.
She started her career with
AC Nielsen Vietnam (now The
Nielsen Company (Vietnam), Ltd.)
in Vietnam, a global consumer
study measurement and data
analytics company, in 1997 as an
Account Executive in the Retail
Audit Department before she left
in 2000 to become the Regional
Brand Manager for the “Pond’s”
brand with Unilever from 2000 to
2005. She left Unilever to join Estée
Lauder Cosmetics Companies in
Vietnam (“ELC”) in June 2005 as
Business Development Manager
cum General Manager, a position
she held until 2013. In April 2013,
she left ELC to join Viet Tinh Anh
Joint Stock Company (“Viet Tinh”),
a distributor of toys, as Business
Director responsible for strategic
planning and implementation of
sales and marketing.

In 2014, she left Viet Tinh to
join Grassroots Joint Stock
Company, a distributor of aesthetic
pharmaceutical and cosmeceutical
products, as Deputy Managing
Director. She left to join Central
Group Vietnam in 2015, a company
focused on the activity of retail and
brands, where she was the Senior
General Manager of Sports from
2015 to 2016. She joined TBS
Vietnam in July 2016 as the General
Manager and was promoted in
February 2020 to her current role
as Senior General Manager which
covers The Body Shop in both
Vietnam and Cambodia.

JULIE WONG SOOK HING
Nationality
Age
Gender

: Malaysian
: 44
: Female

Qualification:
Julie Wong Sook Hing (“Julie”)
holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree majoring in
marketing, from the University of
Nottingham Trent, UK, awarded in
2002. Julie also holds a Diploma
in Professional Makeup by Robin
Makeup Academy and an Advanced
Professional Makeup certification
from Yves Saint Laurent France,
which were awarded in 2006 and
2004 respectively.
Experience:
Julie is the General Manager
(“GM”) of our Natura business in
Malaysia. Prior to this appointment
in 2019, Julie was the General
Manager of Marketing of The Body
Shop responsible for leading the
marketing and digital division of the
brand.
Julie started her career in 1998 in
non-beauty industry before she
joined Esplanade Avenue Sdn Bhd
in 2001, a retailer which carries
multiple cosmetic brand names
such as “Aesop”, “T-LeClerc”,

“Annick Goutal” and “Laura
Mercier”, as its Sales and Marketing
Manager. Subsequently, she joined
YSL Beaute Malaysia in 2002
before she moved on in 2004 to join
Redual Cosmetics Sdn Bhd which
carries Clinique brand products
in Malaysia. From 2005 to 2007,
she was the Brand GM for Classic
Bonita Sdn Bhd (“Classic Bonita”)
responsible for spearheading the
expansion of the “Elianto” brand.
In 2007, Julie founded Cosmo
Charm Sdn Bhd and spent 3 years
to develop her own masstige
cosmetics brand, “Beautilicious”.
In 2010, she took on the role as
the GM of Classic Bonita, and
was subsequently re-designated
as the Vice President of Research,
Development and Academy in
2011. In 2012, she left to join COVO
Cosmetics Sdn Bhd as its GM to
develop “COVO” cosmetic brand in
Malaysia before leaving in 2015.
Prior to joining The Body Shop in
2016, Julie was the Head of Beauty
for HL Management Co Sdn Bhd
from 2015 to 2016, a company
which was involved in running
Gemfive.com.

Note:
• No senior management has
any family relationships with
any other Directors and/or major
shareholders of the Company.
• No senior management holds
any directorships in public
companies and listed issuers.
• No senior management has
any conflict of interest with the
Company.
• No senior management has
been convicted of any offences
within the past five (5) years
other than traffic offences, if any.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DATO’ SIMON FOONG CHOONG HENG
Non-Independent
Non-Executive Chairman

Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors,
I am pleased to present the Annual Report
of InNature Berhad for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.
A YEAR LIKE NO OTHER
2020 was a year like no other for us. Right after the successful listing of InNature on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia in February 2020, we saw the spread of Covid-19 on a global scale, with countries implementing border
control and lockdown measures to combat the pandemic. The waves of Covid-19 caused significant decline in
mall traffic and tourist arrival, and for the first time in 36 years, we had to close all our stores during the Movement
Control Order (“MCO”) period in Malaysia and Vietnam.
In these exceptionally difficult circumstances, each market of InNature has demonstrated great business resilience.
In Malaysia, we managed to limit the impact on revenue, as our omnichannel strategy and efforts to enhance
our multiple sales channels enable us to continue to attract and serve our customers. Our Vietnam operation
continued to record revenue growth, and is now contributing 20% of the Group’s revenue. On the other hand, our
1-year-old operation in Cambodia has been growing from strength to strength, having contributed RM3.5 million
to the Group’s revenue in 2020.
It was with this solid resilience that the Group was able to deliver profit after tax of RM20.2 million during the
pandemic year. Overall, our profitability was well preserved with consistent high gross profit margin, lower operating
costs, and continuous investment in all the necessary business drivers.
DIVIDENDS
On the back of our 2020 profitability, we declared an interim single tier dividend of 1.0 sen per ordinary share on
20 November 2020.
PROSPECTS
The reimposition of MCO in Malaysia subsequent to 2020 shows that the waves of Covid-19 will continue to be
a key limiting factor of the Group’s performance in 2021. We will continue with our efforts in digitalisation and
omnichannel initiatives, and aim to provide more convenience, faster access and better customer experience for
everyone who comes into contact with us.
For the Group’s overseas operations where the pandemic is less virulent, we will continue to expand our store
network judiciously in locations that we are not represented.
Overall, we believe the Group will remain resilient and profitable in 2021, and in doing so, look forward to continue
with our dividend policy and our relentless efforts towards our vision of InNature as a Force for Good.
APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to record my heartfelt appreciation to our stakeholders, including our
Customers, Love Your Body Members, The Body Shop International, Natura Cosméticos S.A. and partners for
their continued support and trust in our Group.
I would also like to thank the entire InNature family for your hard work, perseverance, commitment and dedication.
For it is with these qualities and your demonstrated mobilisation and nimbleness that our Group is able to continue
forging ahead, in 2020 and beyond.

I N N AT U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Management Discussion AND Analysis

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
The business environment of the Group had been affected by the waves of Covid-19 since the beginning of 2020.
The pandemic caused significant fall in mall traffic with a halt to international tourist arrivals, and the temporary
closure of all our stores in Malaysia and Vietnam during the Movement Control Order (“MCO”) period in March
2020 and April 2020.
We have been resilient and adaptive in our responses to the Covid-19 challenges, given the evolving situation.
The health and safety of our colleagues remains our top priority. We implemented regular sanitisation and socialdistancing measures at both head office and stores, supplied personal protective equipment to our staff, and
where necessary, arranged high risk employees to undergo screening at the company’s expense. Our head office
staff are working from home on a rotational basis. Most of our meetings and all our learning and development for
staff are now conducted online.
Having started our e-commerce channels since 2012, we continue to service our customers’ needs through these
channels during and after the MCO with speed and agility. We pivoted various marketing initiatives to encourage
customers and loyalty programme members to shop online, redeployed our staff to support the e-commerce
operations, and diversified our logistic partners in meeting the increased e-commerce orders.
We also made available multiple sales channels for our customers’ convenience. Customers who prefer shopping
from the comfort of their home may opt for our Call and Deliver service, whereas Call / Click and Collect service is
also available for those who want fast-track collection at our stores by making advance orders through phone call,
instant messaging or our e-commerce website.
We rolled out the Love Your Body e-zine in June 2020 as an additional touch point for new product launches,
product information, usage tips, sustainability, social activism and opinion editorials. We launched live chat option
at our e-commerce website, and evolved live streaming sessions to offer our Customers personal engagement.
We remain frugal with our spending and cautious with our cashflow. We exercised strict operational discipline,
making strategic choices in all spending. We engaged with government authorities, landlords and suppliers for
mutual support in these difficult times.
In this unprecedented operating environment, we continue to make necessary investment in the business in
readiness for the future. For 2020, we opened three The Body Shop stores in Vietnam, a second TBS store in
Cambodia, and the first Natura store in Malaysia. Additionally, we launched The Body Shop e-commerce website
in Cambodia in April 2020 just six months after the opening of our first store. We are also closely monitoring the
performance of each store. For 2020, we closed a total of five stores in Malaysia and relocated one in Vietnam.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Results

FY2020
Malaysia Vietnam Cambodia Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Revenue from
external
customers
Existing business 118,776
New business
1,879
120,655
Segment PAT
Existing business 19,789
New business
(3,053)
16,736
Investment holding
Core PAT
Listing-related expenses
Reported PAT

FY2019
Malaysia Vietnam Cambodia Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

31,187
31,187

3,515
3,515

149,963
5,394
155,357

161,026
400
161,426

29,694
29,694

564
564

190,720
964
191,684

3,776
3,776

489
489

23,565
(2,564)
21,001
141
21,142
(959)
20,183

31,761
(1,155)
30,606

4,382
4,382

(526)
(526)

36,143
(1,681)
34,462
(720)
33,742
(3,591)
30,151

Revenue
The Group’s performance in 2020 was impacted by the waves of Covid-19, where our The Body Shop operations
in Malaysia and Vietnam recorded negative SSSG of 23.9% and 9.1% respectively during the financial year.
The impact of the pandemic was lesser in Vietnam and Cambodia, owing to the milder Covid-19 situation in both
countries. As a result, we saw increasing Vietnam’s revenue contribution to the Group from 15.5% in 2019 to
20.1% in 2020. For Cambodia, the 1-year-old operation contributed RM3.5 million to the Group’s revenue during
the financial year.
Our readiness in omnichannel helped cushion the effect of store closure during MCO as well as reduction in
mall traffic, and was the main driver of the 148% increase in e-commerce revenue to RM12.5 million for 2020.
E-commerce made up 8.1% (2019: 2.6%) of the Group’s revenue for the financial year.
PAT
The Group recorded PAT of RM20.2 million on revenue of RM155.4 million for 2020. Overall, the Group incurred
lesser operating expenses on reduced variable expenses, strict cost control measures, rental rebates from
landlords, and monetary / fiscal assistance from governments. On the other hand, the Group recorded a lower
listing-related expenses of RM1.0 million during the financial year.
Geographically, the Group’s TBS businesses in Malaysia, Vietnam and Cambodia were profitable in 2020. The new
Natura business in Malaysia incurred initial gestational losses of RM3.1 million for the financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Position

31.12.2020
Malaysia Vietnam Cambodia Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Segment assets
Existing business 116,056
New business
6,088
122,144
Investment holding
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Existing business 28,245
New business
2,496
30,741
Investment holding
Dividend payable
Total liabilities
Net assets

31.12.2019
Malaysia Vietnam Cambodia Group
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

30,830
30,830

5,037
5,037

146,886
11,125
158,011
30,226
188,237

122,748
4,469
127,217

22,465
22,465

4,352
4,352

145,213
8,821
154,034
1,363
155,397

10,725
10,725

920
920

38,970
3,416
42,386
116
7,059
49,561
138,676

54,402
1,182
55,584

9,777
9,777

2,098
2,098

64,179
3,280
67,459
598
68,057
87,340

Net assets of the Group increased from RM87.3 million at 31 December 2019 to RM138.7 million at 31 December
2020. The increase was driven by higher total assets of RM188.2 million, particularly other investments and cash
and cash equivalents. On the other hand, tota al liabilities of the Group was lower at RM49.6 million following
the reduction in trade and other payables, as well as the full settlement of revolving credit borrowing during the
financial year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has RM7.1 million dividend payable arising from the interim
dividend declared on 20 November 2020.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Group finances its operations primarily through cash generated from operations. In 2020, the Group also
raised funds from the initial public offering exercise for its business expansion in Malaysia, Vietnam and Cambodia.
The Group is in a net cash position as at 31 December 2020, with cash and cash equivalents of RM24.0 million,
other investments (comprising placements in fixed income funds and fixed deposits) of RM29.5 million, and hire
purchase borrowing of RM0.3 million.
Despite the Covid-19 challenges, the Group continues to generate net cash from operating activities of RM35.7
million in 2020.
Net cash used in investing activities was RM34.8 million for 2020, mainly placement of fixed income funds and
fixed deposits above three months, as well as capital expenditures incurred for the Group’s operations.
On financing activities, the Group raised RM47.4 million from its initial public offering exercise in 2020. On the
other hand, the Group made the following financing-related payments during the financial year: (i) RM2.4 million
listing-related expenses; (ii) RM7.1 million dividend; (iii) RM16.3 million bank borrowings; and (iv) RM15.5 million
lease liabilities.
DIVIDENDS
On 20 November 2020, the Company declared an interim single tier dividend of 1.0 sen per ordinary share in
respect of financial year 2020.
PROSPECT
As elaborated in the Chairman’s Statement, the Group’s performance in 2021 will continue to be impacted by
the evolving Covid-19 situation We know that our Brands are strong and relevant, our Teams remain agile and
committed and our business model is ambitious and resilient. We are confident the Group will be able to navigate
through the uncertainties and deliver another year of solid profitability in 2021.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Sustainability Statement of InNature Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.
Our Group believes in business as a force for good and this is embodied in every aspect of our business processes
and operations. We believe that as corporate citizens, we possess the power to make a difference. From the
customers we engage with, to the colleagues we work with, to the communities which we trade with; each one
represents an opportunity to change, to inform, and to inspire through education. And through education, we
aspire to progress greater equality of rights and opportunities. Creating shared value through sustainable practices
and using our position to campaign for social and environmental change, has always been our guiding principle.
Over the years, we have initiated and organised many campaigns for the conservation and protection of the
environment and animals, as well as for human rights and women’s rights in particular. We regularly collaborate
with non-governmental organisations to campaign for these environmental and social causes.
We believe that our Group has an active role to play in our society, because through our network of stores and our
social media, we are able to reach out to consumers to create awareness on social and environmental issues and
to speak out and effect change.
REPORTING BOUNDARY
This statement covers the activities carried out during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. The
scope of this statement includes our Group’s operations in Malaysia, Vietnam and Cambodia.
SUSTAINABILITY MISSION & VISION
Our mission is to use our business and influence to create a positive impact for our employees, customers,
communities and environment. Our vision is for a future in which humanity and our Planet can flourish.
SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Using our business as a force for good means that sustainability is holistically integrated into our business and
Board’s strategy. Our Board, Board committees and senior management intrinsically considers sustainability issues
in making their decisions. However, we do not have in place a separate Sustainability Committee. Sustainability is
expected to be practiced by all of our employees from our store staff, to our clerical and administrative staff, our
executives, management and Board of Directors.
SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGIES AND GOALS
Shareholders

Create value and maximising returns to our shareholders

Customers

Provide high quality, natural and ethical products to our customers with friendly service

Environment

Minimise the environmental impact of our business operations

Workplace

Create a working environment within which all employees can flourish

Governance

To be honest, transparent and ethical in all that we do

Community

Enrich and empower the community by improving livelihoods, develop possibilities and
enhance positive change

Economy

To contribute to growth and to shared prosperity
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Sustainability Statement (continued)

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
We believe having a strong, meaningful and consistent relationship with our stakeholders is imperative for the
success of our business. By understanding their needs and concerns, we are better able to address the needs of
our business and in return strengthen our stakeholders’ confidence in us. Stakeholder engagement is also key to
how we assess material issues we face in our businesses. We constantly engage with our stakeholders through
various methods as set out below:
Stakeholders

Issues of Concern

Methods of engagement

Employees

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Career development
Job security
Remuneration and benefits
Equal opportunities
Training opportunities
Workplace health and safety
Labour and human rights
Work-life balance
Employee volunteerism

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Open communication
Skills development and training programmes
Employee appreciation awards
Employee incentive programmes
Annual appraisal
Events and functions
Management meetings

Customers

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Efficacy and effectiveness
Product innovation
Product ingredients
Product safety
Pricing
Produced ethically
Customer service and
experience

•
•
•
•
•

Customer loyalty programme (Love Your Body
Programme)
Social media platforms
Product standards and certifications
Brand website
Customer feedback platform

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Growth and prospects
Financial performance
Internal control & risk
management
Corporate governance
Regulatory compliance
Reporting standards
Board composition

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Annual general meeting
Quarterly results announcement
Annual reports
Press conferences
Targeted briefings
Meetings
Corporate website

Regulators

•
•
•

Compliance
Security issues
Labour practices

•
•

Compliance with regulatory requirements
Meetings

Vendors /
Suppliers

•
•
•
•
•
•

Product quality and inventory/
supply
Pricing
Ethical sourcing and production
Legal compliance
Commitment
Customer service

•
•
•

Contract negotiation
Supplier audit and evaluation
Meetings

Media

•
•
•
•
•

Business/product development
Reputation and image
Financial performance
Corporate news
Public relation

•
•
•

Media interview
Press events
Press releases

NGOs

•

Environmental impact of
operations
Community well being
Indirect economic impact
Social impact

•
•
•

Partnerships and collaborations
Campaigns
Donations and financial aid

Investors

•
•
•
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Sustainability Statement (continued)

OUR MATERIAL SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS
Material sustainability matters are economic, environmental and social risks and opportunities that affect our
stakeholders and our business. Through our engagement with our stakeholders, we have identified the following
material sustainability matters categorised into Our People, Our Customers, Our Environment and Our Community.
Our People

•
•
•
•
•
•

Fair Compensation
Employee Well Being
Diversity & Inclusion
Occupational Health & Safety
Training & Development
Governance, Ethics & Integrity

Our Customers

•
•
•

Product Safety & Quality
Ethical Products & Values
Customer Service & Experience

Our Environment

•
•

Preservation
Conservation

Our Community

•     Community Development

We have identified the material sustainability matters and assigned weightages based on the importance of each
matter to our stakeholders and the business through discussion with our senior management, as presented in the
matrix below.
Importance to
Stakeholders

Material Sustainability Matters Matrix
4,6,7,9

10
9

1,2

8

3.5

7

12

8

10,11

6
5
4
3
2
1
0
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Importance to business

1

Fair Compensation

7

Product Safety & Quality

2

Employee Well Being

8

Ethical Products & Values

3

Diversity & Inclusion

9

Customer Service & Experience

4

Occupational Health & Safety

10

Preservation

5

Training & Development

11

Conservation

6

Governance, Ethics & Integrity

12

Community Development
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Sustainability Statement (continued)

Our People
At InNature, we value our people and strive to provide a fair and equitable place where all individuals are treated
equally. In addition, we make a conscious effort to help our employees grow as people.

Fair Compensation
We remunerate and pay our employees in accordance with the Employment Act 1955. At our Group, we practice
a fair and equitable payment and remunerate our employees according to their performance without taking into
account gender, religion, race, nationality or age when assessing remuneration and compensation. Our employees
are remunerated based on their expertise, experience, and performance. On a year-to-year basis, we aim to
reward our employees through salary increments and monetary bonus subject to the performance of our Group
and our employees. We are in full compliance of the said act and are strictly against child labour and forced labour.
Employee Well Being
We care for the well-being of our employees and have always strived to make the workplace a home to all
employees. Our employees are entitled to maternity and paternity leave, incentive trips, motivational events,
product allowances and staff rate for our Group’s products. Employees reaching their retirement age are given
opportunities to continue working on a full-time or part-time basis.
We also strive to ensure a strong sense of job satisfaction amongst our employees and provide opportunities
for employees to achieve their full potential. We practice open and honest two-way communication between
supervisors and employees and value regular conversations about the strengths and weaknesses of each
employee. These not only encourage better performances but also inform the employees that their contributions
are recognised and appreciated. We also conduct yearly appraisals to help our employees grow and develop in
their career as well as to chart their prospects with us. It also allows us to understand the needs and expectations
of our employees better to further improve the working conditions of our Group.
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Sustainability Statement (continued)

Besides their career, we help our employees grow as people and provide them with self-fulfilling opportunities to
contribute to society. Guided by our principle of “Business as a Force for Good”, we are constantly working on
various campaigns that champion change or positive impact to our environment and community and in particular,
female empowerment. Our employees are able to contribute to and participate in our campaigns and that has
become a trait of our Group that helps to attract and retain talent. All our employees are paid to perform 16 hours
of volunteering work, whether it is through activities organised by our Group or on their own.
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Sustainability Statement (continued)

Diversity & Inclusion
We celebrate the diversity of people and reject a stereotype of beauty or gender. At our Group, we employ people
from all walks of life, disregarding age, gender, religion, race or nationality. We believe that through diversity and
inclusion, we are able to combine the strength of people and create a greater impact to our business and society.
Our cause for women empowerment is reflected in our workforce, where 80% of our employees are women,
reflected by the composition of our Board.
Our Workforce by Gender

Our Board Composition by
Gender

19.56%

Women

Men

80.00%

Women

1.3%

3.1%

12.8%

20.00%
80.44%

Our Work Force by Age
0.7%

38.7%

43.3%

Below 20 years old
21-29 years old
30-39 years old
40-49 years old
50-59 years old
60-69 years old

Men

We employ people from various age groups. We have a strong workforce comprising of young and matured
employees, with key senior management leading and providing direction to our Group.
Occupational Health & Safety
We value the health of our employees and place great emphasis on safety in our HQ and stores. This means taking
practical steps to ensure that the products, services and operations do not harm or pose an unacceptable risk to
the health and safety of any person affected by our activities, including our employees.
Some of the steps we take include providing our employees with training on fire, health and safety. Our safety
programme and training focus on the following priorities:
•

Competence – people knowing how to work safely

•

Communication – talking about health and safety

•

Culture – health and safety is everyone’s responsibility

•

Controls- having effective procedures that manage risks and accident reporting

Following the outbreak of Covid-19 in 2020, we have taken steps to ensure the safety of our employees. Rotational
work-from-home arrangement has been implemented at our head office, whereas our employees were supplied
with all the necessary personal protection equipment (“PPE”), sanitisers and non-contact thermometers for their
protection. In 2020, our Group incurred RM111,000 on the abovementioned PPE, sanitisers and thermometers.
Training & Development
As we place significant importance on the development of our employees, we invest in continuous training and
development programmes. All new employees of our retail stores are required to complete a comprehensive
training programme followed by on-the-job training to ensure that they are able to provide the best most effective
service to our customers. Our employees are also encouraged to attend external training, and seminars to improve
their skill set, where applicable and relevant.
In 2020, our employees completed a series of training programmes totalling 13,409 training hours. On average,
our employees completed 19 hours of training per year which includes career development courses, seminars,
workshops, and more.
Achieving 16 hours of paid volunteering is a huge morale and confidence booster for our employees. The
experience of donating non-financial assistance is immeasurably rewarding for many who experience it for the
first time.

I N N AT U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020
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Governance, Ethics & Integrity
We strive to continuously uphold the high level of governance practised by our Group by adopting the best
practices of good governance. Please refer to Corporate Governance Overview Statement at pages 44 to 49 for
the state of our governance practices, and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control at pages 53 to 56
for our key internal control processes.
Our Customer
At InNature, we prioritise our customers and strive to ensure that we bring them the quality products that they need
with joyful service and experience. The narrative below focuses on The Body Shop products, given their material
revenue contribution to our Group.
Product safety and quality
Our The Body Shop franchise carries with it an international brand reputation and a connotation of quality which
gives customers assurance of the high standard of The Body Shop product offerings.
The Body Shop International Limited (“TBSI”)’s research and development teams are dedicated to creating
high quality products. The production methods of The Body Shop products are guided by the Cosmetics Good
Manufacturing Practice (ISO 22716) and The Body Shop Contract Manufacturing Quality Charter which sets out
strict procedures and guidelines from sourcing of raw materials to the control testing of raw materials, components
and finished products. This gives TBSI control and visibility into the quality of The Body Shop products during the
sourcing and production cycle. The finished product including packaging must meet adequate quality control, and
performance tests before it can be marketed.
We maintain a set of comprehensive quality control procedures that are intended to ensure that the quality and
condition of all The Body Shop products sold through various distribution channels are regularly monitored and
maintained. In general, we adopt the following approaches and measures for our points-of-sale operations:
•

physical inspection on incoming stocks upon arrival in our points-of-sale where stocks are inspected for
damage, missing items, faulty packaging or product, inaccurate labelling and use-by date;

•

our retail operations manual requires our points-of-sale to perform quarterly audit to identify expired
products or products which are close to their use-by date by at least 6 months. Expired products are
returned to the DC for disposal, whereas products which are near their use-by date but are still useable
will be offered to our staff or donated to non-governmental organisations or charities for distribution;

•

we maintain standard product display guidelines to ensure that The Body Shop products are displayed in a
consistent manner throughout all points-of-sale; and

•

we provide induction programmes for newly joined staff as well as product training to retail staff as and when
new products are launched.

Ethical products and values
Our The Body Shop products are 100% vegetarian and are certified as “cruelty-free” by Cruelty Free International.
It is entrenched in the company policy of TBSl that none of The Body Shop products are tested on animals. This
is in compliance with the Cruelty Free International Leaping Bunny Standard. As such, even though all The Body
Shop products undergo extensive testing to ensure they are safe and effective, all testing carried out is still CrueltyFree.
In addition, through its Community Fair Trade programme, TBSI is able to source traceable quality ingredients
and gift and accessory products from its suppliers in more than 20 countries which directly benefits thousands of
people in marginalised communities around the world. By creating employment opportunities, we help transform
their future, allow people to take control of their lives, and provide for their families’ basic needs such as food,
shelter education and healthcare.
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As an example, TBSI has sustainably sourced its Community Fair Trade moringa seed oil which comes from Asili
Natural Oils, our Community Fair Trade partners in Rwanda. Our trade provides a sustainable income for farmers
in the dry eastern provinces of Rwanda, where income opportunities are low. These women are paid a premium on
top of a fair price to empower these women to achieve an independent income, increased confidence and respect.
This premium also helps fund community projects that positively impact the lives of over tens of thousands of
people across many villages every year.

This Cruelty-Free policy coupled with the Community Fair Trade programme, high product quality and continuing
innovation to meet consumer trends has helped The Body Shop brand garner a strong following among Malaysian
consumers.
We believe that as a result of these attributes, the The Body Shop brand has become an ethical icon with strong
customer recognition and loyalty globally and a brand that customers associate with quality and high standards.
In addition, our social and environmental commitments such as our Forever Against Animal Testing, Kick the Bag
Habit, Save Belum Temengor, Bring Back our Bottles, Safe Sex Ends Aids, End Child Marriage and other prowomen activities, resonate with the growing socially conscious consumer base. Our public campaigns are intrinsic
to the influence we have on customers who try to make ethical purchase decisions. Through our campaigns, we
also engage and enable customers to act in the best interests of people and the environment.
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Customer service and experience
We believe that undisputable service and experience is
key to the success of our business.
Our retail staff working on the frontlines of our stores
undergo comprehensive and holistic training not only
to strengthen their product knowledge so that they
are equipped with the expertise to adequately serve
customers but also to ensure that customers are greeted
with enthusiastic and positive attitudes whenever they
visit our stores. Such product knowledge includes usage,
benefits, ingredients, production, pricing and efficacies
pertaining to products sold. Our staff are also trained to
handle cashier operations, inventory management and
merchandising of products with proficiency enabling them
to serve customers quickly but without compromising
service quality.
We also believe that communication with our customers
is integral and we employ a variety of communication
methods, from our websites, electronic mail, e-newsletters,
short messaging service, and mobile applications to
online advertising and social media to connect with our
customers.

Our Environment
We acknowledge that as a retailer, our activities no matter how small, have an impact. Our mission is therefore
to mitigate and to surpass our own environmental footprint and be a nett positive contributor in the fight against
global warming and climate change.
Preservation
Bio-Bridge Project

We have been partnering with Wildlife Conservation Society (“WCS”) on a Bio-Bridge project for the period from
2016 to 2020 to build natural wildlife corridors that can re-connect damaged habitats in the forests of Peninsular
Malaysia and allow our wildlife to roam freely in a larger area. We have been funding WCS and Malaysian
Conservation Alliance for Tigers to conduct patrolling to protect the Malayan Tigers’ habitat. We committed a total
of RM1,200,000 throughout the period of this Bio-Bridge project.
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International Coastal Clean-up
For more than 30 years, we have been organising
annual beach clean-ups in Malaysia as the official
partner of the Ocean Conservancy, raising awareness
on the need to keep waterways and marine life safe from pollution. Due to the pandemic in 2020, we were not able
to organize large-scale beach clean-ups with our customers and the public. Instead, we organized smaller beach
clean-ups within our Group with strict compliance with the relevant standard operating procedures. Our efforts in
2020 collected 1,320kg of rubbish across six different locations in Malaysia, and one in Vietnam. These locations
included Teluk Bahang in Penang, and Sekinchan and Morib in Selangor.
To further champion and raise more awareness on beach clean-ups, we shared and posted the beach clean-up
guidance on our social media to provide the public useful tips on organising their very own beach clean-up. For
our Vietnam team, instead of bio-degradable plastic bags, they reused rice sacks to collect rubbish.

Conservation
To InNature, conservation is a marathon, not a sprint. This is evidenced by the long term nature of all such projects
undertaken by us.
Kick The Bag Habit Campaign
We eliminated the use of plastic bags from all our stores since 2017. We pioneered the movement in Malaysia
to encourage customers to use their own bags or to make a “donation” out of what they paid for our recycled
paper bag. The funds collected go towards supporting various environmental and community projects, such as
the “Endau Rompin Bio-Bridge” project and “The Body Shop Lends A Hand” campaign. Over the years, we have
donated more than RM3 million to various NGOs.
All The Body Shop paper bags are made from kraft paper
which is compostable and biodegradable thus reducing waste
that ends up in landfills.
Bring Back Our Bottles Campaign
To encourage our customers to recycle, we incentivize our
customers to bring back our empty plastic bottles through our
“Bring Back Our Bottles” campaign. In August 2020, we also
included an additional platform for our customers to gain from
recycling their bottles with us via our The Body Shop mobile
application (“App”). Customers who brought back our bottles
would be able to get RM1 off their next purchase. Customers
would also be able to receive a stamp on our App, and upon
collecting 10 stamps, customers can redeem a recycled
Keychain-fragrancer for free. More than 3,000 empty plastic
bottles were returned in 2020. We look forward to the day when
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incentives are no longer needed to do the
right thing!

More Beauty Less Waste Campaign
Similarly, Natura has kick-started the
“More Beauty, Less Waste” campaign in
June 2020 where customers who bring
back five Natura empty bottles get one
free recycled-plastic soap dish. More
than 100 empty bottles were returned by
customers in 2020.

Closing The Loop Project – The Body Shop &
Natura
We made significant progress during 2020 in our
aim to take responsibility for our bottles at their
end of use. As a continuation of our “Bring Back
Our Bottes” campaign, we managed to recycle
the plastic brought back by our customers into
Keychain-fragrancers. These items are made by
our local community and hence had also helped
provide income.
In addition, the ties attached to the Keychainfragrancers is from fishing lines recovered from
the beaches of Malaysia. They are currently
retailed at our The Body Shop stores and with
every Keychain-fragrancer purchased, our
customers will be protecting our environment
and supporting our local community. Empty
bottles collected from Natura customers are
recycled into colourful soap dishes by the same
local community.
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Green Workplace Initiatives
A major source of our carbon footprint comes from energy use in our office and stores. Recognising the need to
improve our energy consumption, we have since 2012 changed incandescent and fluorescent light bulbs in our
stores and 2014 in our office to light-emitting diodes (“LED”). LEDs consume lesser energy, releases less CO2
emission and have a longer life span.
In October 2019, we installed a solar photovoltaic (PV) system in our office to offset the consumption of electricity.
Since the installation of this PV system, our energy electricity consumption is down by 35.37 megawatt hour, or a
decrease in CO2 emission by 54,804 pounds.

In our office building, our employees are reminded to turn off office lights, their computers and laptops when not
in use. Our air-conditioning is maintained at 24 degrees and switched off whenever possible. Regular maintenance
is conducted on all office equipment to keep them running efficiently. On top of that, paper wastage is reduced by
printing only when necessary which also helped to cut energy required to run the printers.
To encourage minimal waste, each employee does not have their own waste bin in the office. Instead, common
bins segregated by the various types of wastes are provided.
Aside from waste management, we also have water dispensers to encourage staff to refill their water bottles
instead of purchasing bottled plastic drinks.
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Our Community
Community Development
We believe in shared prosperity. This is why enriching and empowering the community by improving livelihoods,
bringing change and positive impact and enhancing lives is an intrinsic aspect of our DNA. As a feminist brand, we
actively focus on causes relating to women empowerment. The campaigns and work that we have done in 2020
for the community are detailed below.
The Body Shop Lends A Hand Donation to Frontliners
2020 was a year like no other when we were hit by the Covid-19
pandemic. Our doctors, nurses and healthcare providers
worked tirelessly and showed relentless courage and tenacity
on the frontlines fighting against the disease. As a gesture of
our appreciation, we together with our customers gifted our
front liners with 6,800 pieces of The Body Shop hand creams
to help nourish their hard-working hands. The hand creams
were funded by the proceeds from our “Kick The Bag Habit”
campaign, as detailed above.
Come Together Act Together - Ending Domestic Violence
Campaign
The Covid-19 pandemic in 2020 led to a spike in domestic
violence. Since the start of the pandemic, many women and
children have been isolated at home with abusive partners or
family members. Therefore we felt that it was important for us
as an activist feminist brand to highlight this rise in domestic
violence and to support our NGO partner, Women’s Aid
Organisation (“WAO”).
In August 2020, we started by printing WAO’s Hotline
number on our The Body Shop paper bags which helped
ensure that more people had access to the helpline and
could share the information. We printed and distributed
35,000 of these recycled paper bags.
To raise further awareness on domestic violence, we had
WAO and key opinion leaders share information, give
advice on getting the proper help and support available
via a series of one-minute videos which we blasted on
our social media platforms.
In support of the global campaign to go “Orange” on
International Day for the Elimination of Violence against
Women, The Body Shop’s social media also went orange
on 25 November 2020 and gained support from followers
and NGOs who also went “Orange” on the day to show
solidarity towards survivors of abuse. This act received
83,683 reach, 96,864 impressions and 1,399 engagement
on social media.
In December 2020, we collaborated with World of Buzz
and WAO to produce a social experiment video asking
six Malaysians from different age group, race and gender
how much they understood about Domestic Violence
in Malaysia. This video reached 651,395 people, made
447,089 impressions and had 233,003 views.
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Our Christmas activism “Come
Together, Act Together” campaign
saw a total of RM17,004 raised in
November and December 2020
for WAO in support of their works
in ending domestic violence in
Malaysia. Similarly, a total of
RM4,541 (VND26,097,108) was
raised from Vietnam in November
and December 2020 to support the
Peace House project by UN Women.

Blood Donation
In August 2020, in the spirit of “..tanah tumpahnya
darah ku..”, staff of InNature gathered and donated
their blood to the National Blood Centre.
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World Children’s Day Talk
In November 2020, we collaborated with an NGO ‘SPOT’, a comprehensive sexuality education provider on a
“Puberty for Dignity” virtual event which comprised of talks by various speakers including our CEO, Molly Fong
on ‘Self Love & Self Care’. There was a total of over 500 attendees for this online event. The program’s goal was
to educate, empower and enable young women and girls by providing relevant information fundamental towards
producing informed individuals through age-appropriate and culturally sensitive approaches.
Volunteering Day to Inspire Knowledge
The Natura team along with volunteers spent a day at Sekolah Kebangsaan Sungai Judah, a local primary school
located in the outskirts of Pulau Carey catered for indigenous children. The team spruced up the school’s library,
giving it a more vibrant and cheerful environment - an important source of inspiration and knowledge for the
students. The main highlight of this makeover is the beautiful mural that reflected Malaysia’s endangered wildlife
species, including the Malayan Tiger.

Other Fund-raising initiatives
In 2020, The Body Shop Malaysia donated over
RM80,000 to WAO and Sisters in Islam to support their
ongoing work to champion and protect Women.
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LET’S CLEAN
UP OUR ACT
TO CLEAN UP
THE PLANET
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The purpose of Corporate Governance Overview Statement ("Statement”) is to narrate the corporate governance
practices of the Company in accordance with Paragraph 15.25 of Bursa Malaysia’s Main Market Listing Requirements
(“MMLR”) and with reference to the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”). This Statement should be
read together with the 2020 Corporate Governance Report of the Company, which is available at www.innature.com.my.
PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS
BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board is primarily responsible for the setting up of strategic direction for the Company. The Board oversees
and supports the Management in pursuing the strategic objectives set by the Board through the following Board
Committees:

BOARD
Audit and Risk Managment
Committee

Nominating and Remuneration
Committee

KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For further information of these Board Committees, please refer to Audit and Risk Management Committee Report
at pages 51 to 52 of this Annual Report, and Nominating and Remuneration Committee Report at page 50 of this
Annual Report.
BOARD CHARTER
The Board has a Board Charter which outlines, among others, roles and responsibilities of the Board, Board
Committees, Board Chairman, Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer, Senior Independent Director and individual
directors, and matters reserved for the Board. The Board Committees are additionally guided by the respective
Terms of Reference on their scope of activities.
CODE OF CONDUCT AND BUSINESS ETHICS
The Board has put in place the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics ("Code”) since 2019 which outlines the
standard of conduct expected upon the directors and employees of the Group. The Code sets out, among others,
policies and procedures on whistle-blowing, conflict of interest, bribery and corruption, accepting / providing gifts,
confidential and proprietary information, equal opportunity and non-discrimination at workplace, and sustainable
development.
WHISTLE-BLOWING / SPEAK OUT CHANNELS
The whistle-blowing policy in the Code provides channels (known as Speak Out Channels) for employees or other
stakeholders to report genuine wrongdoings while ensuring whistleblowers’ rights are protected.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (continued)
BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)
ANTI-BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION POLICY
To further enhance the Company’s efforts in combating bribery and corruption practices following the introduction
of the new Section 17A to the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act 2009, the Board adopted the Anti-Bribery
and Corruption Policy (“ABC Policy”) in 2020 for implementation across the Group.
The Board Charter, Board Committees' Terms of Reference, the Code, Speak Out Channels and ABC Policy are to
be reviewed periodically, and can be found at www.innature.com.my.
BOARD CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
At InNature, the positions of Board Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer are held by different
individuals. While the Board Chairman and Managing Director are spouse, the Chief Executive Officer is not related
to either the Board Chairman or the Managing Director.
BOARD MEETINGS
The Board meets at least 4 times a year pursuant to the Board Charter. A total of 6 Board meetings were held during
2020. The Company Secretary attends the Board meetings to record the proceedings, and to advise the Board
on matters relating to corporate governance and compliance where appropriate. To facilitate Board discussions,
meeting materials are provided, as far as possible, one week before the scheduled meetings.
ACCESS TO ADVICE AND INFORMATION
All directors have full access to the Company Secretary and Management for advice and information. Any director
may also, with the concurrence of the Board, opt for independent professional advice in the furtherance of his/
her duties.
BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board composition and the meeting attendance of directors during 2020 are as follows:
Name of Director

Designation

Meeting
Attendance

Dato’ Simon Foong Choong Heng

Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

6/6

Datin Mina Cheah Kim Choo

Non-Independent Executive Director / Managing
Director

6/6

Molly Fong Hui Sain

Non-Independent Executive Director / Chief
Executive Officer

6/6

Dato’ Maznah Binti Abdul Jalil

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

6/6

Tengku Datin Paduka Setia Zatashah Binti Independent Non-Executive Director
Sultan Sharafuddin Idris Shah

6/6

Daryl Foong Chuen Hoe

6/6

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
(Alternate Director to Dato’ Simon Foong Choong
Heng)
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (continued)
BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)
NUMBER AND TENURE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Due to the condition imposed under the Franchise Framework Agreement, the Company has not adopted Practice
4.1 of MCCG, which encourages half of the Board to be independent directors. The Company, however, has complied
with Paragraph 15.02 of the MMLR with 2 independent directors making up 40% of the Board. Additionally, the
Company appointed Dato’ Maznah as the Senior Independent Director, whom acts as the sounding board for the
Board Chairman as well as a point of contact to whom shareholders’ concerns may be raised. Dato’ Maznah is an
experienced director who has sat on multiple listed company boards for over 2 decades.
None of the independent directors has served beyond the tenure of 9 years as of the date of this Annual Report.
The Board Charter sets out policies to govern the tenure of independent directors, of which additional procedures
are to be carried out if the Board intends to retain an independent director beyond 9 years.
APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR
The Board is responsible for the appointment and re-election of director to the Board. Chaired by the Senior
Independent Director, the NRC assists the Board to identify and assess suitability of a director candidate based on
the guidance set out in the Director Nomination Policy. There is no appointment of new director to the Board in 2020.
The Company’s Constitution provides that one-third (or the number nearest to one-third) of the directors shall retire
from office at each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), and may stand for re-election at that AGM. Dato’ Maznah and
Molly Fong shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, have given their consent for re-election. Having
considered their contributions to the Group and Company, the NRC has recommended for their re-election. The
Board has concurred with the recommendation.
GENDER DIVERSITY
The Company endeavours a 50% women participation at the Board in its Boardroom Diversity Policy. In 2020 and
as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company has exceeded its commitment with 80% of its Board being
women directors.
This commitment to gender diversity has also being reflected in the Group’s composition of Key Senior Management.
Excluding Datin Mina and Molly Fong who are the Directors, 80% of the Group’s Key Senior Management are
women in 2020 and as at the date of this Annual Report.

BOARD

KEY SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

20%

Male

20%

Male

80%
Female

80%
Female

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (continued)
BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)
EFFECTIVENESS OF BOARD, BOARD COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS
The NRC implemented the first post-listing annual assessment covering the evaluation on the effectiveness of
the Board, Board Committees and individual directors. The assessment was carried out through the completion
of confidential questionnaire by each director. For individual directors, the assessment was done through selfassessment as well as peer-assessment.
The questionnaire was prepared based on guidance provided in Bursa Malaysia’s Corporate Governance Guide, and
was endorsed by the NRC and the Board. No independent expert was engaged for the annual assessment exercise.
The completed assessment questionnaires were compiled by the Company Secretary, where the summary of the
assessment was submitted for review by NRC and then presented to the Board. For the inaugural annual assessment,
the Board was satisfied that the Board as a whole and its Board Committees were effective, and that each and
every director had contributed to the effective functioning of the Board and Board Committees.
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The Board has put in place the Director Remuneration Policy to ensure that the directors are rightly remunerated
given their experience, roles and level of responsibilities. The Board delegates to the NRC matters relating to the
implementation of the said policy, which includes reviewing the remuneration of the executive and non-executive
directors.
Having considered the uncertain operating environment amid the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the NRC
recommended to the Board to maintain the existing remuneration of the executive and non-executive directors in
2021. The recommendation was concurred by the Board.
The remuneration of each individual director for 2020 is as follows:

Fees and
Allowances
RM ’000

Salaries
RM ’000

Dato’ Simon Foong Choong
Heng

55

–

–

–

55

Datin Mina Cheah Kim Choo

–

556

28

101

685

Directors

Molly Fong Hui Sain

Benefit-inStatutory
kind Contributions
RM’000
RM ’000 (1)

Total
RM ’000

–

636

28

76

740

Dato’ Maznah Binti Abdul
Jalil

85

–

–

–

85

Tengku Datin Paduka Setia
Zatashah Binti Sultan
Sharafuddin Idris Shah

75

–

–

–

75

–

–

–

–

–

Daryl Foong Chuen Hoe
Notes:
(1)

(2)

Included contributions to EPF, SOCSO, EIS, and where relevant contributions to state plan required under
Vietnamese laws.
There was no director’s fees and allowances paid to Mr. Daryl Foong Chuen Hoe as he is an Alternate Director
to Dato’ Simon Foong Choong Heng.
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (continued)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
The remuneration of each individual Key Senior Management for 2020 (excluding directors) in bands of RM50,000
is as follows:
Key Senior Management

In Bands of RM50,000
RM ’000

Jesse Siew Lai Leng

400 – 450

Mae Chan Nian Mei

350 – 400

Chia Cang Yang

350 – 400

Nguyen Thi Ngoc Hue

850 - 900

Julie Wong Sook Hing

250 – 300

PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The ARMC of the Company comprises 3 non-executive directors, with the majority of them independent. The ARMC
is chaired by Dato’ Maznah, the Senior Independent Director of the Company. None of the ARMC members were
former audit partners who are required to observe a cooling-off period of at least 2 years before being appointed
in accordance with the Terms of Reference of ARMC.
In the annual assessment on the suitability, objectivity and independence of the external auditors, the ARMC is
guided by the factors as prescribed under Paragraph 15.21 of the MMLR as well as the External Auditor Assessment
Policy which was approved by the Board in April 2020.
Please refer to ARMC Report at pages 51 to 52 of this Annual Report for further information on the Committee.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
The ARMC is responsible to oversee the Company’s risk management, as well as to assist the Board in ensuring
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control.
Please refer to the Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control at pages 53 to 56 of this Annual Report,
on the state of the Company’s risk management and internal control system in 2020.
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PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH
STAKEHOLDERS
COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS
InNature endeavours to ensure that its communication with shareholders and various stakeholders is transparent,
timely and with quality disclosure. In this regard, the Board adopted the Corporate Disclosure Policy in 2020 to
provide guidance on the dissemination of material information.
The Company engages its stakeholders through various platforms, including the announcements via Bursa Malaysia,
disclosures on its website and engagements through the investor relations function. The Company’s investor relations
function is handled by the Chief Financial Officer through corporate communication team.
The Corporate Disclosure Policy and contact information of the corporate communication team are accessible at
the Company’s website, www.innature.com.my.
CONDUCT OF GENERAL MEETINGS
The Company conducted its fully virtual 25th AGM at 12th Floor, Menara Symphony, Jalan Prof. Khoo Kay Kim,
46200 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan (Broadcast Venue) on 19 August 2020 by leveraging technology. Save
for the few essential individuals, attendance to the 25th AGM was all done remotely via Remote Participation and
Voting facilities.
The notice of the 25th AGM was issued more than 28 days before the AGM date, in line with the recommended
corporate governance practice. The proceedings of the 25th AGM at the Broadcast Venue included the Board
Chairman’s presentation on the latest development of the Group post-2019, the Chief Financial Officer’s presentation
on the Group’s financial performance for 2019 and 6-month ended 30 June 2020, and a Questions & Answers
session during which the Chairman of the 25th AGM invited shareholders to raise real-time questions through the
query box facility before the resolutions were put to vote.
The Scrutineer, Quantegic Services Sdn Bhd verified the poll results for each resolution, upon which the Chairman of
the 25th AGM declared that all the resolutions were carried. The poll results were announced through Bursa Malaysia
on the same day for the benefit of all shareholders. The Minutes of the 25th AGM were also made available at the
Company’s website, www.innature.com.my.
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COMMITTEE COMPOSITION AND MEETING ATTENDANCE
The Nominating and Remuneration Committee comprises the following Non-Executive Directors with majority of
them are independent:

*

DATO’ MAZNAH BINTI
ABDUL JALIL

DATO’ SIMON FOONG
CHOONG HENG

TENGKU DATIN PADUKA SETIA
ZATASHAH BINTI SULTAN
SHARAFUDDIN
IDRIS SHAH

Chairperson
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Member
Non-Independent
Non-Executive Chairman

Member
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Attended 1/1 meeting in 2020

Attended 1/1 meeting in 2020

Attended 1/1 meeting in 2020

Note: The profile of NRC members can be found in “Profile of Board of Directors” as set out on pages 12 to
17 of this Annual Report.

The full Terms of Reference for NRC is available at www.innature.com.my.
SUMMARY OF COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES
•
•
•

•
•

Reviewed and proposed the remuneration of directors. Please refer to the relevant write-up in the Corporate
Governance Overview Statement at page 47 of this Annual Report.
Assessed the effectiveness of the Board, Board Committees and individual directors. Please refer to the
relevant write-up in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement at page 47 of this Annual Report.
Reviewed and assessed the directors standing for re-election at the next Annual General Meeting. Please
refer to the relevant write-up in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement at page 46 of this Annual
Report.
Assessed the independence of independent directors.
Reviewed the performance of ARMC and its members.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION AND MEETING ATTENDANCE
The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises the following Non-Executive Directors with majority of
them independent.

*

DATO’ MAZNAH BINTI
ABDUL JALIL

DATO’ SIMON FOONG
CHOONG HENG

TENGKU DATIN PADUKA SETIA
ZATASHAH BINTI SULTAN
SHARAFUDDIN
IDRIS SHAH

Chairperson
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Member
Non-Independent
Non-Executive Chairman

Member
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Attended 5/5 meeting in 2020

Attended 5/5 meeting in 2020

Attended 5/5 meeting in 2020

Note : The profile of ARMC members can be found in “Profile of Board of Directors” as set out on pages 12
to 17 of this Annual Report.

The full Terms of Reference for ARMC is available at www.innature.com.my.
SUMMARY OF COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Reviewed quarterly results and annual financial statements of the Group.
Reviewed annual budget of the Group.
Reviewed related party transactions of the Group.
Internal audit
o
Reviewed and recommended for Board’s approval, the appointment of Internal Auditors.
o
Reviewed Internal Audit Plan.
External audit
o
Reviewed External Audit Plan for the Company and the Group.
o
Reviewed audit findings presented by External Auditors.
o
Conducted private session with External Auditors.
o
Conducted assessment on the suitability, performance and independence of the External Auditors.
Reviewed and recommended for Board’s approval, the draft Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy.
Discussed whistle-blowing disclosure reported through speak out channels.
Reviewed Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the Annual Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT
Tricor Axcelasia Sdn Bhd was appointed as the Group’s Internal Auditors ("IA”) on 17 August 2020. The IA is led by
Mr Chang Ming Chew, the Executive Director of Tricor Axcelasia who has over 19 years of relevant experience and
possess various professional qualifications. He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
Chartered Accountant and member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, a professional member of the Institute
of Internal Auditors Malaysia, a Certified Internal Auditor (USA) and he holds the Certification in Risk Management
Assurance (USA).
The IA presented the annual Internal Audit Plan to the ARMC on 20 November 2020. The identified key audit areas
include supply chain – procurement, information technology general control focusing on security, management
control over foreign subsidiaries, and the Group’s Environment, Social and Governance compliance.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee Report (continued)

INTERNAL AUDIT (continued)
The first IA engagement was carried out in December 2020, with audit findings and recommendations reported
to the ARMC on 22 February 2021. The IA engagement covers the effectiveness of control for the supply chain
function of a subsidiary in Malaysia. Overall, the IA did not report any significant control deficiency in the supply
chain function. Nevertheless, the IA recommended several improvement points to further enhance the existing
controls of the supply chain function. These improvement points had been worked on by the management.
The total costs incurred by IA in discharging its responsibilities in 2020 was RM16,261.
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Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control
OVERVIEW
This Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (“Statement”) was prepared pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b)
of the Listing Requirements on the state of risk management and internal control system of InNature Berhad for 2020.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The Board is ultimately responsible for InNature’s risk management and internal control system which includes the
establishment of an appropriate control environment and framework, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness
of the ongoing risk management processes. Due to the inherent limitations in any system of risk management and
internal control, such system is designed to manage risks and to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
against the risks of failure, material misstatements or losses.
KEY INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESSES
The Group’s internal control system comprises the following key processes:
1.

2.

Authority and Responsibility
(a)

The Board is guided by the Board Charter in discharging its duties. The Board Charter outlines, among
others, the roles and responsibilities of the Board, matters reserved for the Board, Board processes, and
Board policies such as Directors’ code of conduct and ethics, Directors’ conflict of interest, boardroom
diversity and sustainability.

(b)

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to the Board Committees through defined Terms of
Reference.

(c)

The Managing Director (“MD”) oversees the overall management and performance of the Group, whereas
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) is primarily responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Group.
The CEO is supported by the Chief Operations Officer (“COO”), the Chief Revenue Officer (“CRO”), the
Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) and the respective Heads of Business Unit. Collectively, the MD, CEO,
COO, CRO, CFO and the Heads of Business Units form the Key Senior Management of the Group.

(d)

The CFO also reports directly to the MD on finance, corporate governance and risk management matters
of the Group.

(e)

During 2020, the Board adopted the Limit of Authority Policy which sets out the authority limits for
entering into contracts, commitments and appropriating Group’s assets in the course of conducting
the business.

Policies and Procedures
(a)

Formalised policies and procedures are in place to ensure the effective operation of InNature, and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

(b)

The Group reviews its policies and procedures regularly to ensure they remain relevant. In 2020, revisions
were made to the Board Charter and Code of Conduct and Business Ethics as a result of the periodic
review.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

KEY INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESSES (continued)
2.

Policies and Procedures (continued)
(c)

The Group adopted the following policies and procedures during 2020 and up to date of this Statement:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.
viii.
ix.

3.

Limit of authority policy
Related party transactions policy
Anti-bribery and corruption policy
Corporate disclosure policy
External auditor assessment policy
Independent director assessment policy
Director nomination policy
Director remuneration policy
Procurement policy

Planning, Monitoring and Reporting
(a)

The Group carries out annual planning and budgetary exercise, where all business units are required to
prepare business plans and budgets for the forthcoming year. The consolidated budget of the Group
is deliberated and approved by the Board.

(b)

The Board is updated on the Group’s performance (including actual achievement versus budget) at the
scheduled quarterly meetings by the CFO’s presentation on the Group’s quarterly results.

(c)

There is a regular flow of information to the Board on the Group’s operations to facilitate the Board’s
discharging of its duties. This includes the briefing by Management on the Group’s Covid-19 business
continuity plan during 2020.

(d)

At operational level, the Key Senior Management monitors the performance of each business unit through
periodic reports such as daily sales report and monthly management report, where any anomalies are
raised immediately to the relevant person in-charge for clarification or action. The daily sales report is
also shared with Retail Managers for their monitoring of store performance.

(e)

Meetings are held monthly and quarterly to review performances of each business unit. The monthly
management meeting involving the CEO, COO, CRO, CFO, Heads of Department and Retail Managers
is held to discuss operational matters and performances. The monthly meeting also receives operational
reports from the Loss Prevention Officer such as stock take findings, sales collection bank-in, cancelled
sales, exchange and refund, staff purchase, and manual receipt, where the attending Retail Managers
are required to address the findings from the Loss Prevention Officer.

(f)

The quarterly performance review is held to review the achievement of each business unit against the
budget. This meeting is attended by the Board Chairman, MD, CEO, other Key Senior Management
and Heads of Department.

(g)

These meetings also serve as the platform for participants to voice their concerns and/or highlight risks
identified in the course of their duties. These will be discussed during the meeting for the appropriate
action plan to address the concerns / risks raised.

(h)

Compliance to the established procedures in Retail Operations Manual is monitored by the Loss
Prevention Officer from the Corporate Governance division who is independent of the retail operations.
The Loss Prevention Officer participates in the monthly stock take of retail outlets or warehouse on
a random basis, as well as the investigation of reported theft cases. As aforementioned, the Loss
Prevention Officer reports his findings during the monthly management meeting.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

KEY INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESSES (continued)
4.

5.

Audits
(a)

The Board appointed Tricor Axcelasia Sdn Bhd as the Group’s Internal Auditors ("IA”) on 17 August
2020. The IA carries out audit engagements based on the annual audit plan approved by the ARMC,
taking into consideration feedback from the Management. IA assesses the selected areas under the audit
scope in relation to risk exposure, compliance with the approved policies and procedures, applicable
laws and regulations, and where relevant, benchmark against available best practice. For any significant
gaps identified during the audit engagements, IA provides recommendations to Management on how
to improve the processes and effectiveness of controls, where applicable.

(b)

For 2020, IA carried out an audit engagement on the procurement process for the supply chain function
of The Body Shop operation in Malaysia. Findings of the audit had been presented to the ARMC on 22
February 2021.

(c)

The External Auditors’ audit plan on the Group’s financial statements is tabled annually to the ARMC
for deliberation and approval. The External Auditors reported its audit findings for 2020 to the ARMC
on 22 February 2021.

Employees’ Competency
It is the policy of InNature for all its retail staff to undergo trainings periodically, so as to equip themselves
with the necessary product knowledge and soft skills for consistent delivery of quality services to InNature’s
customers. In addition, all newly-joined staff is required to attend an induction session of which InNature’s
history, values, policies and procedures are explained. Due to the Covid-19 situation, most of the staff trainings
in 2020 had been conducted online.

6.

Conduct of Employees
(a)

The Group has put in place a Code of Conduct and Business Ethics (the “Code”) setting out the
standards of conduct expected of InNature directors and employees. The Code includes the following
provisions:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.
viii.
ix.

Whistle-blowing (known as “Speak Out” for the Group);
Conflict of interest;
Bribery and corruption;
Accepting / providing gifts, benefits and courtesies;
Confidential and proprietary information;
Money laundering;
Antitrust / competition law;
Equal opportunity and non-discrimination at workplace; and
Sustainable development.

(b)

In 2020, the Group rolled out its inaugural annual declaration of conflict of interest, where each employee
is required to declare via Google Form within the stipulated timeline. The declaration is kept with the
Human Resource Department.

(c)

The Speak Out policy in the Code provides a platform to report wrongdoings by employees or other
stakeholders whilst protecting the rights of the informants. Speak Out channel enables the Group to
address concerns that affect its reputation and interests more effectively. Starting from 2020, discussion
on cases reported through Speak Out channel (if any) has been included as an agenda of the ARMC’s
and Board’s quarterly meetings.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

KEY INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESSES (continued)
6.

Conduct of Employees (continued)
(d)

7.

InNature upholds a zero-tolerance approach to all forms of bribery and corruption. In this regard, the
Group adopted the Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy in 2020 elaborating the principles and guidelines
in combating bribery and corruption activities which may arise in the course of business. The Group’s
stance on bribery and corruption has also been communicated to its suppliers through the incorporation
of anti-bribery and corruption statements on purchase orders.

Insurance
The Group has sufficient insurance coverage and physical safeguards in place to ensure its assets are
adequately covered against any mishap that could result in material loss.

8.

Risk Management
(a)

The Corporate Governance division led by the CFO is responsible for the corporate governance and
risk management functions of the Group. Being independent from the retail operations, the Corporate
Governance division monitors compliance to established policies and procedures, provides assurance
through participation in the monthly stock take of retail outlets or warehouse on a random basis, and
investigates reported theft cases. Additionally, the Corporate Governance division drives the formulation
and implementation of policies and procedures in the Group.

(b)

Material risk such as the Covid-19 pandemic in 2020 is presented to the Board where Management’s
action plan is deliberated.

(c)

The Heads of Department continuously identify the major risks associated with their respective
departments, the likelihood of the occurrence and the consequences, and highlight these risks to the
Key Senior Management on an ad-hoc basis or during the regular meetings.

(d)

Mitigation plan on the risks identified are deliberated amongst the Key Senior Management as well as
the Heads of Department prior to execution. Accountability of the risk mitigation plan is also established
during the deliberation.

CONCLUSION
The Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal control system for the financial year under
review, and up to the date of approval of this Statement, is functioning satisfactorily. The Board has received
assurance from the MD, CEO and CFO that the Group’s risk management and internal control system is operating
effectively, in all material aspects. There were no material losses, contingencies or uncertainties which have been
arisen from any inadequacy or failure of the Group’s risk management and internal control system that would require
separate disclosure in this Annual Report.
This Statement was approved by the Board on 28 April 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible to ensure the financial statements provide a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group as at the end of the financial year and the results and cash flows of the Group in accordance with
applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia, Companies Act 2016 and the Listing Requirements.
In the preparation of the financial statements set out from page 58 to page 135 of this Annual Report, the Directors
have ensured that:
-

Considered the applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia;
Applied appropriate accounting policies on a consistent basis;
Estimations and judgements made were reasonable and prudent; and
The financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors have the responsibility to ensure the safekeeping of accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Group. Furthermore, the Directors are also responsible to safeguard the assets
of the Group by preventing and detecting fraud and any other possible irregularities.
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Directors’ report

for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
Principal activities
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities, whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries
are as stated in Note 5 to the financial statements. There has been no significant change in the nature of these
activities during the financial year.
Subsidiaries
The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.
Results
				
Group
				RM’000
Profit for the financial year attributable to:			
Owners of the Company				

20,183

Company
RM’000
30,332

Reserves and provisions
There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under review except
as disclosed in the financial statements.
Dividends
Since the end of the previous financial year, the amount of dividends paid by the Company were as follows:
•

single tier special dividend of RM0.01 per ordinary share in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2019, totalling RM7,059,000 declared on 18 February 2020 and paid on 30 April 2020; and

•

single tier ordinary dividend of RM0.01 per ordinary share in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2020, totalling RM7,059,000 declared on 20 November 2020 and paid on 15 January 2021.

Directors of the Company
Directors who served during the financial year until the date of this report are:
Dato’ Foong Choong Heng
Datin Cheah Kim Choo
Fong Hui Sain
Dato’ Maznah Binti Abdul Jalil
Tengku Datin Paduka Setia Zatashah Binti Sultan Sharafuddin Idris Shah
Foong Chuen Hoe (Alternate Director to Dato’ Foong Choong Heng)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors of the subsidiaries
The directors who served in the subsidiaries during the financial year until the date of this report are:
Dato’ Foong Choong Heng
Datin Cheah Kim Choo
Fong Hui Sain
Directors’ interests
The Directors holding office at the end of the financial year and their beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings
kept by the Company under Section 59 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia were as follows:
Number of ordinary shares
		At			At
		 1.1.2020
Bought
Sold
31.12.2020
Direct interest				
Fong Hui Sain		
–
373,500
–
Dato’ Maznah Binti Abdul Jalil		
–
400,000
–
Tengku Datin Paduka Setia Zatashah
Binti Sultan Sharafuddin Idris Shah 		
–
100,000
–
Indirect interest				
Dato’ Foong Choong Heng *		
610,628,544
–
103,300,000
Datin Cheah Kim Choo **		
631,807,488
–
103,400,000
Foong Chuen Hoe ***		
21,178,944
–
100,000

373,500
400,000
100,000

507,328,544
528,407,488
21,078,944

*

Deemed interest by virtue of his interest in Etheco Sdn. Bhd., Bluplanet Sdn. Bhd. and Primarium Sdn. Bhd.

**

Deemed interest by virtue of her interest in Etheco Sdn. Bhd., Bluplanet Sdn. Bhd., Primarium Sdn. Bhd. and
Pelagos Sdn. Bhd.

***

Deemed interest by virtue of his interest in Pelagos Sdn. Bhd.

Directors’ benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive
any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable
by Directors as shown in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the Company or of
related corporations) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or
with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial
interests, other than as disclosed in the Note 28 to the financial statements.
There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Issue of shares and debentures
The Company launched its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) and issued its prospectus in relation to the IPO on 29 January
2020. The IPO involves the offering of 177,274,000 ordinary shares in the Company (“Shares”) in conjunction with
the listing of and quotation for the entire 705,881,488 Shares on the Main Market of Bursa Securities comprising
a public issue of 74,074,000 new Shares (“Issue Shares”) and an offer for sale of 103,200,000 existing Shares and
involving:
i.

Institutional offering of 161,142,500 Shares to Malaysian and foreign institutional and selected investors,
including Bumiputera investors approved by the Ministry of International Trade and Industry; and

ii.

Retail offering of 16,131,500 Issue shares to the Directors and eligible employees of the Group and the
Malaysian public, at the retail price of RM0.64 per Share.

The allotment of the Shares and the Listing took place on 19 February 2020 and 20 February 2020, respectively.
There were no debentures issued during the financial year.
Options granted over unissued shares
No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.
Indemnity and insurance costs
The Directors and Officers of the Group and of the Company are covered by Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
(“D&O Insurance”) for any liability incurred in the discharge of their duties, provided that they have not acted
fraudulently or dishonestly or derived any personal profit or advantage. The total amount of D&O Insurance effected
for the Directors and Officers of the Group was RM5,000,000. The insurance premium for the D&O insurance paid
during the financial year amounted to RM9,500.
Other statutory information
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable
steps to ascertain that:
i)

there are no bad debts to be written off and no provision needs to be made for doubtful debts, and

ii)

any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written
down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
i)

that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in
the Group and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

ii)

that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company misleading, or

iii)

which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv)

not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that would render any amount stated in the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.
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Other statutory information (continued)
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
i)

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year
and which secures the liabilities of any other person, or

ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial
year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as
and when they fall due.
In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and
unusual nature nor has any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial
year and the date of this report.
Significant event
The significant event during the financial year is disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.
Auditors
The auditors, KPMG PLT, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.
The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Dato’ Foong Choong Heng
Director

Datin Cheah Kim Choo
Director

Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan
Date: 28 April 2021
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Statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2020

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

Assets						
Plant and equipment
3
12,896
13,997
–
–
Right-of-use assets
4
21,830
24,123
–
–
Investment in subsidiaries
5
–
–
96,749
82,461
Intangible assets
6
52,651
52,875
–
–
Deferred tax assets
7
953
1,146
–
–
Receivables and deposits
8
6,345
6,210
–
–
Total non-current assets		94,675

98,351

96,749

82,461

Inventories
9
34,415
Receivables, deposits and
  
prepayments
8
5,643
Current tax assets		9
Other investments
10
29,528
Cash and cash equivalents
11
23,967

33,776

–

–

5,771
8
46
17,445

1,194
9
22,758
7,438

6,602
8
–
1,349

Total current assets		93,562

57,046

31,399

7,959

Total assets		188,237

155,397

128,148

90,420

Liabilities						
Provision for restoration costs
12
2,018
2,233
–
–
Loans and borrowings
13
186
276
–
–
Lease liabilities
14
10,204
11,081
–
–
Total non-current liabilities		12,408

13,590

–

–

Provision for restoration costs
12
313
Loans and borrowings
13
153
Lease liabilities
14
12,447
Contract liabilities
15
1,000
Payables and accruals
16
14,426
Dividend payable		7,059
Current tax liabilities		
1,755

194
16,300
14,081
1,429
19,105
–
3,358

–
–
–
–
107
7,059
–

–
–
–
–
31,590
–
–

Total current liabilities		37,153

54,467

7,166

31,590

Total liabilities		49,561

68,057

7,166

31,590

Net assets		138,676

87,340

120,982

58,830

Equity					
Share capital		50,326
4,388
50,326
4,388
Reserves		88,350
82,952
70,656
54,442
Total equity

17

138,676

87,340

The notes on pages 72 to 129 are an integral part of these financial statements.

120,982

58,830
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Statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Group
Note
2020
2019
		RM’000
RM’000
			Restated
Revenue

18

155,357

191,684

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000
31,500

–

Operating expenses						
Changes in inventories		
(51,075)
(62,404)
–
–
Rental expenses		
(1,216)
(4,316)
–
–
Employee related expenses		
(34,942)
(40,720)
(215)
(592)
Distribution expenses		
(3,369)
(3,063)
–
–
Advertising and promotion
expenses		
(4,366)
(5,617)
–
–
Depreciation and amortisation
expenses		
(21,420)
(21,048)
–
–
Other operating expenses		
(9,581)
(9,714)
(235)
(122)
Total operating expenses		
(125,969)

(146,882)

(450)

(714)

Profit/(Loss) from operations		29,388

44,802

31,050

(714)

Other income/(expense)
19
487
Finance income 		923
Finance costs
20
(2,218)
Listing-related expenses		 (959)

1,008
407
(2,231)
(3,591)

(400)
631
–
(949)

–
33
–
(3,503)

27,621
(7,438)

40,395
(10,244)

30,332
–

(4,184)
–

Profit/(Loss) for the year		20,183

30,151

30,332

(4,184)

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax expense

21
22

Other comprehensive expense,
net of tax (Items that are or
may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss)					
Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operation,
representing other comprehensive
expense for the year		
(667)
(140)
–
–
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year		19,516

30,011

30,332

(4,184)
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Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
(continued)

Group
Note
2020
2019
		RM’000
RM’000
			Restated

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

Profit/(Loss) attributable to
owners of the Company		20,183

30,151

30,332

(4,184)

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) attributable to
owners of the Company		19,516

30,011

30,332

(4,184)

Earnings per share attributable to
the Owners of the Company
(sen):
- basic

23

2.90

8.19

The notes on pages 72 to 129 are an integral part of these financial statements.

65

66

I N N A T U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2020

< -------- Non-distributable -------- > Distributable
			Business
		
Share combination Translation
Retained
Note
capital
reserve
reserve
earnings
		RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Total
equity
RM’000

Group						
						
At 1 January 2019		 2,500
4,636
213
68,092
75,441
Profit for the year		
Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operation,
representing total other
comprehensive expense for the
year		

–

–

–

30,151

30,151

–

–

(140)

–

(140)

Total comprehensive income for
the year		–
Transactions with owners
Issue of ordinary shares		
1,888
Dividend declared
24
–

–

(140)

30,151

30,011

–
–

–
–

–
(20,000)

1,888
(20,000)

Total transactions with owners		

1,888

–

–

(20,000)

(18,112)

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		 4,388

4,636

73

78,243

87,340

–

–

–

20,183

20,183

–

–

(667)

–

(667)

Profit for the year		
Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operation,
representing total other
comprehensive expense for the
year		

Total comprehensive income for
the year		–
–
(667)
20,183
19,516
Transactions with owners						
Issue of ordinary shares		
47,407
–
–
–
47,407
Share issuance expenses		
(1,469)
–
–
–
(1,469)
Dividend declared
24
–
–
–
(14,118)
(14,118)
Total transactions with owners		

45,938

–

–

(14,118)

31,820

At 31 December 2020		 50,326

4,636

(594)

84,308

138,676

Note 17.2

Note 17.3

		

Note 17.1
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Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

		
Note
Share
			 capital
			RM’000

Distributable
Retained
earnings
RM’000

Total
equity
RM’000

Company
At 1 January 2019			 2,500
Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year			
–
Transaction with owners				
Issue of ordinary shares			
1,888
Dividend declared		
24
–
Total transaction with owners			

78,626

81,126

(4,184)

(4,184)

–
(20,000)

1,888
(20,000)

1,888

(20,000)

(18,112)

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020 		 4,388
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year			
–
Transaction with owners				
Issue of ordinary shares			
47,407
Share issuance expenses			
(1,469)
Dividend declared		
24
–

54,442

58,830

30,332

30,332

–
–
(14,118)

47,407
(1,469)
(14,118)

Total transaction with owners			

45,938

(14,118)

31,820

At 31 December 2020			50,326

70,656

120,982

			
Note 17.1		

The notes on pages 72 to 129 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000
Cash flows from operating
activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax		27,621
Adjustments for:
Changes in lease payments
  arising from rent concessions		
(2,698)
Depreciation of:
- plant and equipment		
5,289
- right-of-use assets		
15,830
Dividend income		–
Amortisation of intangible assets		
301
Gain on disposal of plant and
  equipment		–
Plant and equipment written off		
188
Finance income		 (923)
Finance costs		2,218
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign
  exchange		 16
Fair value loss on other
  investments		21
Listing-related expenses		 959

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

40,395

30,332

(4,184)

–

–

–

4,175
16,656
–
217

–
–
(31,500)
–

–
–
–
–

(260)
87
(407)
2,231

–
–
(631)
–

–
–
(33)
–

(34)

370

–

–
3,591

30
949

–
3,503

Operating profit/(loss) before
   changes in working capital		48,822
66,651
(450)
(714)
Changes in working capital:						
Inventories		 (756)
(7,090)
–
–
Receivables, deposits and
  prepayments		
(55)
(2,928)
(15)
304
Payables, accruals and contract
  liabilities		(3,336)
2,202
(466)
4
Provision for restoration costs		
(87)
200
–
–
Cash generated from/(used in)
  operations		44,588
Income tax (paid)/refunded		
(8,847)

59,035
(11,857)

(931)
(1)

(406)
15

Net cash generated from/
   (used in) operating activities		

47,178

(932)

(391)

35,741
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Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000
Cash flow from investing
activities
Increase in investments in
  subsidiaries		–
(Advances to)/Repayments from
  subsidiaries		
–
Repayments to a related party		
–
Acquisition of plant and
  equipment
(ii)
(4,271)
Acquisition of intangible assets		
(1,910)
Proceeds from disposal of plant
  and equipment		–
(Placements)/Withdrawals of
  other investments		(29,503)
Dividend received		–
Interest received		909
Net cash (used in)/generated
   from investing activities		

(34,775)

Cash flows from financing
activities
Repayment of hire purchase
  borrowings
(iv)
(237)
Repayment of revolving credit
(iv)
(16,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities
(iv)
(13,346)
Change in pledged deposits		
–
Interest paid for loan and
  borrowings		 (85)
Interest paid for lease liabilities		
(2,133)
Listing-related expenses		 (2,428)
Dividend paid
(iv)
(7,059)
Proceeds from issue of share
  capital		47,407
Net cash generated from/
  (used in) financing activities		 6,119

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

–

(14,288)

(2,600)

–
(2,009)

(25,893)
–

24,421
–

(11,139)
–

–
–

–
–

260

–

–

2,184
–
407

(22,788)
31,500
560

–
–
33

(10,297)

(30,909)

21,854

(389)
(4,000)
(15,975)
434

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

(306)
(1,925)
(3,044)
(20,000)

–
–
(2,418)
(7,059)

–
–
(2,956)
(20,000)

1,888

47,407

1,888

(43,317)

37,930

(21,068)

(6,436)

6,089

395

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents		
7,085
Effect of exchange rate
fluctuations on cash held		
(563)
Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January		17,445

57

–

–

23,824

1,349

954

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

17,445

7,438

1,349

(iii)

23,967
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Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Notes to statements of cash flows
(i)

Cash outflows for leases as a lessee

		
Group
			Note
2020
2019
				RM’000
RM’000
Included in net cash from operating activities
Payment relating to short-term leases		
14
Payment relating to variable lease payments
   not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
14
Included in net cash from financing activities
Interest paid in relation to lease liabilities		
14
Payment of lease liabilities				
Total cash outflows for leases
(ii)

429

510

1,329

2,448

2,133
13,346

1,925
15,975

			17,237

20,858

Acquisition of plant and equipment
During the financial year, the Group acquired plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of RM4,471,000
(2019: RM11,886,000) of which RM Nil (2019: RM460,000) were acquired by means of hire purchase borrowings.
At 31 December 2020, an amount of RM200,000 (2019: RM287,000) remained unpaid and classified as other
payable.

(iii)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements of cash flows comprise the following consolidated
statements of financial position amounts:
Group

		2020
		RM’000
Cash and bank balances		
Deposits placed with licensed banks

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

22,893
1,074

17,445
–

7,438
–

1,349
–

			23,967

17,445

7,438

1,349

Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

41,738

(36,642)

13,621

(2,698)

14,118

(88)

30,049

(52)

41,738

460

			 44,626

17,068

576
16,000
25,162

Group						
Hire purchase borrowings		505
(389)
–
460
–
Revolving credit		20,000
(4,000)
–
–
–
Lease liabilities		 24,121
(15,975)
17,068
–
(52)
(20,364)

At
31.12.2019
RM’000

New hire
purchase
borrowings
RM’000

Foreign
exchange
movement
RM’000

				
Net
				 changes from		
			At
financing Acquisition of
			
1.1.2019
cash flows
new lease
			RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

							
Company							
Dividend payable
–
(7,059)
–
–
14,118
–
7,059

		

Group							
Dividend payable
–
(7,059)
–
–
14,118
–
7,059
Hire purchase borrowings
576
(237)
–
–
–
–
339
Lease liabilities
25,162
(13,346)
13,621
(2,698)
–
(88)
22,651
Revolving credit
16,000
(16,000)
–
–
–
–
–

					
Changes
					
in lease					
		
Net		payments
			
changes from		
arising		
Foreign
		
At
financing Acquisition of
from rent
Dividend
exchange
At		
1.1.2020
cash flows
new lease
concessions
declared
movement
31.12.2020
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

The following table illustrated the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
charges during the financial year:

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The notes on pages 72 to 129 are an integral part of these financial statements.

(iv)

Notes to statements of cash flows	(continued)
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Notes to the financial statements

InNature Berhad (the “Company”) is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The
addresses of the principal place of business and registered office of the Company are as follows:
Principal place of business
5, Jalan USJ 10/1C
47620 Subang Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia
Registered office
802, 8th Floor, Block C
Kelana Square
17, Jalan SS7/26
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities, whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as
“Group entities”). The financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 do not include other entities.
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 April 2021.
1.

Basis of preparation
(a)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2020, have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”),
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016
in Malaysia.
The Group and the Company have early adopted Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases – Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions that is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 (See Note 31).
The following are accounting standards, interpretations and amendments of the MFRSs that have been
issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the
Group and the Company:
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021
•
Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments, MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, MFRS 4, Insurance Contracts
and MFRS 16, Leases – Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021
•
Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases – Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1.

Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022
•
Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018−2020)
•
Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations – Reference to the Conceptual Framework
•
Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards
2018−2020)
•
Amendments to Illustrative Examples accompanying MFRS 16, Leases (Annual Improvements to
MFRS Standards 2018−2020)
•
Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment − Proceeds before Intended Use
•
Amendments to MFRS 137, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets − Onerous
Contracts − Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
•
Amendments to MFRS 141, Agriculture (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018−2020)
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023
•
MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
•
Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements – Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and Disclosures of Accounting Policies
•
Amendments to MFRS 108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors –
Definition of Accounting Estimates
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date yet to be confirmed
•
Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
The Group and Company plan to apply the abovementioned accounting standards, interpretations and
amendments, where applicable:
•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2021 for those amendments that is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2022 for those amendments that are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 and 1 January 2022.

•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 for the accounting standard and amendments
that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The initial application of the amendments is not expected to have any material financial impact to the
current period and prior period financial statements of the Group and Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1.

Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise disclosed
in Note 2.

(c)

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information is presented in RM and has been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise stated.

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting
policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements other than
those disclosed in the following notes:
•
•
•
•

Note 4 – extension options and incremental borrowing rate in relation to leases
Note 5 – investment in subsidiaries
Note 6 – valuation of intangible assets
Note 9 – valuation of inventories
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these
financial statements and have been applied consistently by the Group entities, unless otherwise stated.
The Group and the Company have applied the amendment to MFRS 16, Leases – Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions issued by MASB in June 2020. The amendment introduces an optional practical expedient
that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
Pandemic. The impact arising from the changes are disclosed in Note 31.
(a)

Basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control only when such rights are
substantive. The Group also considers it has de facto power over an investee when, despite not
having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability to direct the activities of the investee
that significantly affect the investee’s return.
Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution.
The cost of investments includes transaction costs.

(ii)

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date,
which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•
•
•
•

the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest
in the acquiree; less
the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that
the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
(iii)

Acquisitions from entities under common controls
Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of
the shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established; for this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group controlling
shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities
are added to the same components within Group equity and any resulting gain/loss is recognised
directly in equity.

(iv)

Loss of control
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of
the former subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related
to the former subsidiary from the consolidated statements of financial position. Any surplus or
deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest
in the former subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is
lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted investee or as a financial asset
depending on the level of influence retained.

(v)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(b)

Foreign currency
(i)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the
end of the reporting date, except for those that are measured at fair value which are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for
differences arising on the retranslation of equity instruments where they are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income or a financial instrument designated as a cash flow hedge,
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.
In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future,
foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part
of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income,
and are presented in the foreign currency translation reserve (“FCTR”) in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

Foreign currency (continued)
(ii)

Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia
The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, are
translated to RM at exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The income and expenses
of foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated
to RM at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the FCTR in equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant
proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When
a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost,
the cumulative amount in the FCTR related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests.

(c)

Financial instruments
(i)

Recognition and initial measurement
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without significant financing component) or a
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issuance. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract where the host contract
is not a financial asset, and accounted for separately if, and only if, the derivative is not closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the host contract is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss. The host contract, in the event an embedded
derivative is recognised separately, is accounted for in accordance with policy applicable to the
nature of the host contract.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Financial instruments (continued)
(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:
Financial assets
Categories of financial assets are determined on initial recognition and are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group or the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change of the business model.
(a)

Amortised cost
Amortised cost category comprises financial assets that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are not designated
as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial assets
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised
in profit or loss.
Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount except for credit impaired financial assets (see Note 2(j)(i)) where the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost.

(b)

Fair value through profit or loss
All financial assets not measured at amortised cost are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. This includes derivative financial assets (except for a derivative that is a designated
and effective hedging instrument). On initial recognition, the Group or the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income as fair value through
profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
Financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at
their fair value. Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised
in the profit or loss.

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss are subject to
impairment assessment (see Note 2(j)(i)).
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Financial instruments (continued)
(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Financial liabilities not categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any
gains or losses on derecognition are also recognised in the profit or loss.

(iii)

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and derecognised, as applicable,
using trade date or settlement date accounting in the current year.
Trade date accounting refers to:
(a)

the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the trade date,
and

(b)

derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on disposal and the
recognition of a receivable from the buyer for payment on the trade date.

Settlement date accounting refers to:
(a)

the recognition of an asset on the day it is received by the Group or the Company, and

(b)

derecognition of an asset and recognition of any gain or loss on disposal on the day that
is delivered by the Group or the Company.

Any change in the fair value of the asset to be received during the period between the trade date
and the settlement date is accounted in the same way as it accounts for the acquired asset.
Generally, the Group or the Company applies settlement date accounting unless otherwise stated
for the specific class of asset.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Financial instruments (continued)
(iv)

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantees issued are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured
at higher of:
•
•

the amount of the loss allowance; and
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance to the principles of MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees are presented together with other provisions.
(v)

Derecognition
A financial asset or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire or transferred, or control of the asset is not retained
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred to
another party. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the sum of consideration received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. A financial liability is also derecognised when
its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in
which case, a new financial liability based on modified terms is recognised at fair value. On
derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(vi)

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group or the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and liability simultaneously.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d)

Plant and equipment
(i)

Recognition and measurement
Items of plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use,
and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located. Cost also may include transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of plant and equipment.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.
When significant parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of plant and equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of plant and equipment and is recognised net
within “other income” and “other expenses” respectively in profit or loss.

(ii)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the component will flow to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of
the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii)

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of each component of an item of plant and equipment from the date that they are available for
use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods of the assets are as follows:
Furniture and fittings				
Office equipment				
Renovation				
Electrical fittings				
Motor vehicles				

2 – 5 years
2 – 5 years
4 – 5 years
4 years
5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, and adjusted as appropriate.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Leases
(i)

Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:
(a)

the contract involves the use of an identified asset – this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity
of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the
asset is not identified;

(b)

the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use
of the asset throughout the period of use; and

(c)

the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset. The customer has this right when
it has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where all the decisions about how and for what
purpose the asset is used are predetermined, the customer has the right to direct the use
of the asset if either the customer has the right to operate the asset; or the customer has
designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group
has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.
(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement
As a lessee
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Leases (continued)
(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement (continued)
As a lessee (continued)
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments less any incentives receivable;
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;
the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise;
and
penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The Group excludes variable lease payments that are linked to future performance or usage of
the underlying asset from the lease liability. Instead, these payments are recognised in profit or
loss in the year in which the performance or use occurs.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less or leases of low-value assets less than RM20,000.
The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
COVID-19-related rent concessions
The Group and the Company have applied Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases – Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions. The Group and the Company apply the practical expedient allowing them
not to assess whether eligible rent concessions that are a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modifications. The Group and the Company apply the practical expedient
consistently to contracts with similar characteristics and in similar circumstances. For rent
concessions in leases to which the Group and the Company choose not to apply the practical
expedient, or that do not qualify for the practical expedient, the Group and the Company assess
whether there is a lease modification.
As a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of
whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating
lease.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Leases (continued)
(iii)

Subsequent measurement
As a lessee
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there
is a revision of in-substance fixed lease payments, or if there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
As a lessor
The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straightline basis over the lease term as part of “other income”.

(f)

Intangible assets
(i)

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

(ii)

Franchise rights
Franchise rights have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

(iii)

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)

Intangible assets (continued)
(iv)

Amortisation
Goodwill are not amortised but are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.
Franchise rights are amortised from the date that they are available for use. Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of franchise rights
which is estimated to be 10 years.
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted, if appropriate.

(g)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories is calculated
using the weighted average method, and included expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

(h)

Contract liability
A contract liability is stated at cost and represents the obligation of the Group or the Company to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which consideration has been received from the customers.

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which have an
insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or less, and are used
by the Group and the Company in the management of their short-term commitments. For the purpose
of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and
pledged deposits, if any.

(j)

Impairment
(i)

Financial assets
The Group and the Company recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial
assets measured at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses.
The Group and the Company measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss, except for debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date, cash and bank balance and other debt securities for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, which are measured at 12-month expected credit loss. Loss
allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss.

85

86

I N N A T U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j)

Impairment (continued)
(i)

Financial assets (continued)
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit loss, the Group and the Company consider
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
and the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forwardlooking information, where available.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the asset, while 12-month expected credit losses are the portion
of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date. The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group and the Company are exposed to credit
risk.
An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised in
profit or loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account.
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

(ii)

Other assets
The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated each period at the same time.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash-generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for
the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired
in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to a cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j)

Impairment (continued)
(ii)

Other assets (continued)
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating
unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-generating units) on a
pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which the reversals are recognised.

(k)

Equity instruments
Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured
subsequently.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

(l)

Employee benefits
(i)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave
and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii)

State plans
The Group’s contributions to statutory contribution plans are charged to profit or loss in the
financial year to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m)

Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group or the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefit will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.
Provision for restoration costs
Provision for restoration costs is included in the carrying amounts of renovation. This provision is
recognised in respect of the Group’s obligation to restore leased stores to its original state upon the
end of the tenancy agreements. The restorations costs are recognised as part of the costs of plant and
equipment.

(n)

Revenue and other income
(i)

Revenue
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. The Group or the Company recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control
over a product or service to customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains
control of the asset.
The Group or the Company transfers control of a good or service at a point in time unless one of
the following overtime criteria is met:
(a)
(b)
(c)

(ii)

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the Group
or the Company performs;
the Group’s or the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
the Group’s or the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use and the Group or the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Rental income
Rental income from sub-leased property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total
rental income, over the term of the lease. Rental income from sub-leased property is recognised
as other operating income.

(iii)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or Company’s right
to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

(iv)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o)

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

(p)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly
in equity or other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous financial years.
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases.
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.

(q)

Earnings per ordinary share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own
shares held.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(r)

Operating segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components. Operating segment results are reviewed regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, which in this case is the Managing Director of the Group, to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

(s)

Contingent liabilities
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

(t)

Fair value measurements
Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease transactions, is determined as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market.
For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far
as possible. Fair value is categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input
used in the valuation technique as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfers.

3.

18,514

15,694

(8)

(6)
4,793

16,045
484
–
(827)

(3)

(2)
4,358
406
61
(26)

25,339
2,547
(11,838)
–

5,237
912
(1,789)
–

1,445

–

1,363
98
–
(16)

–

1,453
221
(311)
–

3,285

–

3,285
–
–
–

–

3,947
651
–
(1,313)

–

–

61
–
(61)
–

–

–
61
–
–

43,731

(154)

40,763
4,471
–
(1,349)

(44)

50,893
11,886
(20,659)
(1,313)

Total
RM’000

At 31 December 2020		

10,420

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		8,005
Depreciation for the year		
2,878
Write off
3.2
(412)
Effect of movements in
exchange rates		
(51)

13,102

(6)

(2)
3,757

12,377
1,450
(719)

3,341
436
(18)

1,213

–

1,106
119
(12)

2,343

–

1,937
406
–

–

–

–
–
–

30,835

(59)

26,766
5,289
(1,161)

								
Accumulated depreciation								
At 1 January 2019		
12,875
4,811
22,657
1,283
2,869
–
44,495
Depreciation for the year		
1,827
319
1,514
134
381
–
4,175
Write off
3.2
(6,682)
(1,788)
(11,791)
(311)
–
–
(20,572)
Disposals		–
–
–
–
(1,313)
–
(1,313)
Effect of movements in
exchange rates		(15)
(1)
(3)
–
–
–
(19)

At 31 December 2020		

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		15,651
Additions		
3,483
Transfer		
–
Write off
3.2
(480)
Effect of movements in
exchange rates		
(140)

Cost
At 1 January 2019		
14,917
Additions		
7,494
Write off
3.2
(6,721)
Disposals		–
Effect of movements in
exchange rates		(39)

								
Capital
			
Furniture
Office		
Electrical
Motor
work in
Group
Note
and fittings
equipment
Renovation
fittings
vehicles
progress
			RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Plant and equipment
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3.

1,036

At 31 December 2020		

3.2

3.1

1,017

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		7,646

2,592

3,668

2,682

232

257

170

942

1,348

1,078

–

61

–

12,896

13,997

6,398

Total
RM’000

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reassessed the use of some of its plant and equipment. Consequently, plant and
equipment with a carrying amount of RM188,000 (2019: RM87,000) was written off. Included in the plant and equipment written off are fully
depreciated plant and equipment with original cost of RM854,000 (2019: RM20,312,000).

Plant and equipment written off

Included in plant and equipment of the Group are motor vehicles acquired under hire purchase borrowing arrangements with carrying amount
of RM477,000 (2019: RM1,136,000).

Plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase borrowings

8,094

426

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2019		2,042

								
Capital
			
Furniture
Office		
Electrical
Motor
work in
Group
Note
and fittings
equipment
Renovation
fittings
vehicles
progress
			RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Plant and equipment (continued)
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4.

Right-of-use assets

		
Group
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
Cost 		
At 1 January				
27,592
Additions				13,621
Expiration of lease contracts				
(13,464)
Effect of movement in exchange rates			
(102)

33,266
17,068
(22,655)
(87)

At 31 December				

27,647

27,592

Accumulated depreciation			
At 1 January				
Depreciation for the year				
Expiration of lease contracts				
Effect of movement in exchange rates			

3,469
15,830
(13,464)
(18)

9,507
16,656
(22,655)
(39)

At 31 December				

5,817

3,469

			
Carrying amounts				21,830

24,123

The Group leases buildings for its office spaces and retail stores. The leases typically run for a period of 1 to
7 years. The leases expire upon the expiry of the initial term.
4.1

Significant judgements and assumptions in relation to leases
The Group applies judgement and assumptions in determining the incremental borrowing rate of the
respective leases. Group entities first determine the closest available borrowing rates before using
judgement to determine the adjustments required to reflect the term, security, value or economic
environment of the respective leases.

4.2

Variable lease payments based on sales
Some leases of retail stores contain variable lease payments that are based on sales that the Group
makes at the store. Those payments are common in retail stores in the country where the Group operates.
Variable rental payments were as follows:
		
Group
		

Variable
payments
RM’000

Estimated annual impact on
rent of a 1% increase in sales
RM’000

2020
Leases with lease payments based on sales

1,329		 13

			
2019
Leases with lease payments based on sales

1,902		 26
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4.

Right-of-use assets (continued)
4.3

Extension options
Some leases of retail stores contain extension options exercisable by the Group up to one year before
the end of the non-cancellable contract period. Where applicable, the Group seeks to include extension
options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the lessors. The Group assesses at lease commencement whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant change in circumstances within
its control.
			
			
		
Lease liabilities
		
recognised
Group
(discounted)
		
RM’000

5.

Potential future
lease payments
not included in
lease liabilities
(discounted)
RM’000

Historical rate of
exercise of
extension options
%

2020
Buildings

5,466

10,472

16.42

2019
Buildings

9,088

11,433

4.35

Investment in subsidiaries

		Company
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
At cost				
Unquoted shares				94,042
Less: Accumulated impairment loss			
(1,607)

84,068
(1,607)

					92,435
Advance to a subsidiary*				
4,314

82,461
–

					96,749

82,461

*		The advance to a subsidiary is classified as non-current as the Company recognises the advance as
a long term source of capital to the subsidiary.
Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses. Significant judgements are required when
identifying impairment indicators. Where impairment indicators exist, judgements and assumptions are required
to determine the recoverable amount of the investment in the subsidiaries. Significant assumptions used to
derive the recoverable amount includes the growth rate, gross profit margins and the appropriate discount
rate.
The Company invested an additional RM9,974,000 in three of its subsidiaries during the financial year.
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5.

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Principal
place of
business/
Country of
incorporation

Principal activities

Effective
ownership
interest
2020
2019
%
%

Rampai-Niaga
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Marketing of products under the
franchise of “The Body Shop”

100

100

TBS Vietnam
Company Limited1

Vietnam

Provision of consultancy services
and marketing of products under the
franchise of “The Body Shop”

100

100

Green Cosmetics
(Cambodia)
Company Limited2

Cambodia

Marketing of products under the
franchise of “The Body Shop”

100

100

Ola Beleza Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Marketing of products “Natura”

100

100

Hello Natural Sdn.
Bhd.

Malaysia

Dormant

100

100

1

Not audited by KPMG PLT.

2

Not audited by KPMG PLT. The financial information of the subsidiary was consolidated based on its
management accounts for the financial years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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6.

Intangible assets
				
			
Goodwill
			RM’000

Franchise
rights
RM’000

Capital work
In progress
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Group
Cost
At 1 January 2019		
50,435
Additions		
–
Effect of movement in exchange
rates			 –

9,400
1,831

–
–

59,835
1,831

(14)

–

(14)

11,217
–

–
88

61,652
88

(12)

(1)

(13)

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		50,435
Additions		 –
Effect of movement in exchange
rates		
–
At 31 December 2020		

50,435

11,205

87

61,727

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2019		
Amortisation for the year		

–
–

8,560
217

–
–

8,560
217

8,777
301

–
–

8,777
301

(2)

–

(2)

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		
–
Amortisation for the year		
–
Effect of movement in exchange
rates		 –
At 31 December 2020		

–

9,076

–

9,076

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2019		

50,435

840

–

51,275

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		

50,435

2,440

–

52,875

At 31 December 2020		

50,435

2,129

87

52,651

Amortisation
The amortisation of franchise rights is recognised in depreciation and amortisation expenses.
Goodwill
Goodwill arose from the Group’s acquisition of its operations in West Malaysia, Sabah and Labuan in the
previous financial years.
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6.

Intangible assets (continued)
Franchise rights
Franchise rights represent exclusive rights acquired by the Group through franchise agreements with The
Body Shop International to market and distribute The Body Shop products. The amortisation period of 10
years is determined by the management based on the terms of the franchise agreement.
Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to a subsidiary acquired at which the cash
generating units (“CGUs”) are identified and the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each unit are as follows:

					2020
					RM’000
Group			
West Malaysia 				
Sabah and Labuan				

2019
RM’000

34,119
16,316

34,119
16,316

					50,435

50,435

Goodwill impairment testing is based on value in use determined by the management. Value in use is derived
from the subsidiary’s future financial budgets. Key assumptions used in preparing the financial budgets
represent management’s assessment of future trends in the subsidiary’s principal activity with certain reference
made to internal sources (historical data).
Value in use is determined by discounting the 5-years pre-tax cash flows to be generated from the continuing
use of the units and was based on the following key assumptions:
•

Average 7% (2019: 4%) revenue growth per annum for the operation in West Malaysia;

•

Average 4% (2019: Nil%) revenue growth per annum for the operation in Sabah and Labuan;

•

Projected profit margins based on historical profit margin achieved;

•

An increase of 1% to 10% (2019: 4% to 10%) in operating expenses;

•

The subsidiary will be able to continuously renew its franchise agreement with The Body Shop
International Limited;

•

Terminal growth of Nil % (2019: 4%) for West Malaysia and Nil % (2019: Nil %) for Sabah and Labuan;
and

•

Pre-tax discount rate of 7.5% (2019: 7.5%) per annum.

97

98

I N N A T U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6.

Intangible assets (continued)
Based on the assessments, there was no indication of impairment on goodwill during the financial year
under review. In addition, there were also assessments on the key assumptions used and sensitivity of such
assumptions to impairment losses and the results are as follows:

7.

(i)

Change of pre-tax discount rate from 7.5% to 10% (2019: 7.5% to 10%) would not result in impairment
losses; or

(ii)

No revenue growth for the operation in West Malaysia, Sabah and Labuan would not result in impairment
losses.

Deferred tax assets
Recognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following:

		Assets
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
Group			
Lease liabilities				4,734
Plant and equipment				
10
Provisions				667
Other items				53

6,039
–
885
97

Deferred tax assets				

7,021

5,464

		Liabilities
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
Group			
Plant and equipment				
–
Right-of-use assets				
(4,511)

(85)
(5,790)

Deferred tax liabilities				

(5,875)

(4,511)

		Net
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Group			
Lease liabilities				4,734
Plant and equipment				
10
Provisions				667
Right-of-use assets				
(4,511)
Other items				53

6,039
(85)
885
(5,790)
97

Net deferred tax assets				

1,146

953
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7.

Deferred tax assets (continued)
Movement in temporary differences during the year

			Recognised		Recognised
			
in profit or
At
in profit or
		
At
loss
31.12.2019/
loss
		
1.1.2019
(Note 22)
1.1.2020
(Note 22)
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

At
31.12.2020
RM’000

Group
Plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other items

(70)
–
–
544
(34)

(15)
(5,790)
6,039
341
131

(85)
(5,790)
6,039
885
97

95
1,279
(1,305)
(218)
(44)

10
(4,511)
4,734
667
53

		

440

706

1,146

(193)

953

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Details of deferred tax assets pertaining to a subsidiary which has not been recognised in the financial
statements are as follows:
					2020
					RM’000
Group
Unutilised tax losses				
Other deductible temporary differences			

2019
RM’000

3,522
356

938
102

					3,878

1,040

Pursuant to the current tax legislations in Malaysia, unutilised tax losses from a year of assessment of Group
entities other than foreign subsidiaries can only be carried forward up to 7 consecutive years of assessment
(“YAs”). Unutilised tax losses of the Group expiring in the following periods:
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Group
Expiring in:
2026					938
2027					
2,584

938
–

					
3,522

938

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of unutilised tax losses because it is uncertain that
future taxable profit will be available against which the subsidiaries can utilise the tax losses.

99

100

I N N A T U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8.

9.

Receivables, deposits and prepayments
				Note
2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Group				
Non-current				
Deposits				6,345

6,210

				
Current				
Trade receivables				3,315
Other receivables and deposits				
1,450

3,378
1,799

					4,765
Prepayments			 8.2
878

5,177
594

					5,643

5,771

					11,988

11,981

				
Company				
Current				
Other receivables and deposits			
8.1
1,189
Prepayments				
5

6,602
–

					1,194

6,602

8.1

Included in other receivables and deposits of the Company are amounts due from subsidiaries totalling
RM1,173,000 (2019: RM6,596,000) which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

8.2

Included in prepayment is an amount of RM178,000 (2019: RM Nil) representing a prepayment paid for
an acquisition of plant and equipment.

Inventories

		
Group
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
			
Trading goods				34,415
33,776
			
Recognised in profit or loss:			
Inventories recognised as changes in inventories			
Write-down to net realisable value				

51,041
34

62,404
–

The management reviews for obsolescence and decline in net realisable value to below cost. This review
requires judgements and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revision to the valuation
of inventories.
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10.

Other investments
				
Fund
			
Note
investments
				RM’000

Short term
fixed deposits
RM’000

Total
RM’000

24,785
–

–
4,743

24,785
4,743

				24,785

4,743

29,528

2020
Group
Fair value through profit or loss		
10.1
Amortised cost		 10.2

				
Company
Fair value through profit or loss 		
10.1

22,758

–

22,758

				
2019
Group
Amortised cost		
10.2

–

46

46

10.1 Fund investments
Investment in money market instruments meet the requirement of financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) as the holder of the funds does not seek to collect merely contractual
cash flows and relevant interests but also to hold for appreciation in the value of the funds.
10.2 Short term fixed deposits
Fixed deposit placed with licenced banks more than three months but less than twelve months are
financial assets measured at amortised costs.
11.

Cash and cash equivalents
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Group				
Cash and bank balances				
22,893
Deposits placed with licensed banks			
1,074

17,445
–

					23,967

17,445

Company				
Cash and bank balances				
7,438

1,349
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12.

Provision for restoration costs

		
Group
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
				
At 1 January				
2,427
2,230
Provisions made during the year				
90
315
Utilisation during the year				
(186)
(118)
At 31 December				

2,331

2,427

				
Non-current				2,018
Current				313

2,233
194

					2,331

2,427

Provisions made were in respect of the Group’s obligation to restore the leased stores at the end of their
tenancy agreements.
13.

Loans and borrowings

		
Group
				Note
2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
Non-current				
Hire purchase borrowings 				
186

276

Current				
Revolving credit			
13.1
–
Hire purchase borrowings				
153

16,000
300

					
153

16,300

					
339

16,576

13.1 Security
The revolving credit was secured by way of a letter of negative pledge issued by a subsidiary and letter
of undertaking by certain Directors of the Group.
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14.

Lease liabilities
					2020
					RM’000
Group
Non-current
Lease liabilities 				
10,204
				
Current
Lease liabilities				12,447
					22,651
Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Changes in lease payments arising from rent concessions		
Interest expense on lease liabilities				
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities				
Expenses relating to short-term leases			

15.

2019
RM’000

11,081

14,081
25,162

(2,698)
2,133

–
1,925

1,329
429

2,448
510

Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities are in relation to discount vouchers issued to eligible members who purchased goods at
The Body Shop outlets in West Malaysia, Sabah, Labuan and Vietnam via the “Love Your Body” membership
programme. The contract liabilities will be recognised as revenue as when the discount vouchers are utilised
by the customers.
The fair value of the discount vouchers is estimated by reference to the monetary value attributable to the
awarded loyalty points and their redemption profile. All estimates are reviewed annually.
Movement in contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
					2020
					RM’000
Group
At 1 January				
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year			
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts
recognised as revenue during the year			
At 31 December				

2019
RM’000

1,429

1,938

(1,429)

(1,938)

1,000

1,429

1,000

1,429
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16.

Payables and accruals
				Note
2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Group
Trade			
Trade payables				
6,911

10,353

Non-trade				
Other payables				2,013
Accrued expenses				5,502

2,463
6,289

					7,515

8,752

					14,426

19,105

Company
Non-trade				
Other payables			
16.1
3
Accrued expenses				104

30,997
593

					
107

31,590

16.1 Included in other payables of the Company is an amount due to a subsidiary totalling RM Nil (2019:
RM30,997,000) which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
17.

Capital and reserve
17.1 Share capital

Group and Company
2020
2019
				Number		Number
			
Amount
of shares
Amount
of shares
		
Note
RM’000
’000
RM’000
’000
		

Issued and fully paid
shares with no par
value classified
as equity instruments:
Ordinary shares
At 1 January		4,388
Issue of ordinary shares		
47,407
Share issuance expenses		
(1,469)
Subdivision of shares		–

631,807
74,074
–
–

2,500
1,888
–
–

2,500
1,888
–
627,419

At 31 December		

705,881

4,388

631,807

50,326
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17.

Capital and reserve (continued)
17.1 Share capital (continued)
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company and rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.
On 24 December 2019, the Company carried out a subdivision of the entire issued share capital of
RM4,387,552 comprising 4,387,552 ordinary shares into RM4,387,552 comprising 631,807,488 ordinary
shares.
The Company launched its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) and issued its prospectus in relation to the
IPO on 29 January 2020. The IPO involves the offering of 177,274,000 ordinary shares in the Company
(“Shares”) in conjunction with the listing of and quotation for the entire 705,881,488 Shares on the Main
Market of Bursa Securities comprising a public issue of 74,074,000 new Shares (“Issue Shares”) and
an offer for sale of 103,200,000 existing Shares and involving:
i.

Institutional offering of 161,142,500 Shares to Malaysian and foreign institutional and selected
investors, including Bumiputera investors approved by the Ministry of International Trade and
Industry; and

ii.

Retail offering of 16,131,500 Issue Shares to the Directors and eligible employees of the Group
and the Malaysian public, at the retail price of RM0.64 per Share.

The allotment of the Shares and the Listing took place on 19 February 2020 and 20 February 2020,
respectively.
17.2 Business combination reserve
Business combination reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and net assets
acquired in the acquisition of a subsidiary under common control.
17.3 Translation reserve
Translation reserve represents foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the Group entities with functional currencies other than RM.
18.

Revenue
Group

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Revenue from contracts with
customers:
Sale of goods		
155,277
Consultancy fees		80
Dividend income from a subsidiary		
–

191,616
68
–

–
–
31,500

–
–
–

			155,357

191,684

31,500

–

105

106

I N N A T U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18.

Revenue (continued)
The following information reflects the typical transactions of the Group:

Nature of
goods

Timing of
recognition

Payment
terms

Variable element in
consideration

Obligations for
returns or
refunds

“The Body
Shop”
products

Revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the
goods are delivered to
customers.

Due upon
delivery of
goods.

Customers may earn
loyalty points.

The Group allows
returns or refunds
for a period of
14 days from the
invoice date.

“Natura”
products

Revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the
goods are delivered to
customers.

Due upon
delivery of
goods.

Discounts are given
to eligible beauty
consultants, and to all
walk-in customers during
promotional period.

The Group allows
returns or refunds
for a period of
14 days from the
invoice date.

Consultancy
services

Revenue is recognised
over time as and when
the consultancy services
are performed using the
cost incurred method.

Due upon
invoice
date.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Customer
loyalty
programme
- “Love Your
Body”

Customers under the
loyalty programme who
purchase products are
entitled to earn loyalty
points. Accumulated
loyalty points are
convertible to discount
vouchers that are
redeemable against any
future purchases. The
amount will be recognised
as revenue when
discount vouchers are
redeemed by customers,
or have expired or are no
longer expected to be
redeemed.

The
discount
vouchers
expire within
1 month.

The Group allocates
a portion of the
consideration received
to loyalty points issued
and the discount voucher
given is measured at fair
value, i.e. the relative
The loyalty
selling prices. This
points
expire within amount is deferred and
1 year if the included in contract
liabilities.
customer
does not
For loyalty points, the
meet the
amount of revenue
minimum
recognised is based
purchase
on the number of
amount.
points that have been
redeemed, relative to
the total number of
points expected to be
redeemed. For discount
vouchers, the revenue is
estimated by reference
to the monetary value
attributable to customer
rebates and redemption
profile.

Not applicable.
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19.

Other income/(expense)
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Group			
Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange			
- realised				499
- unrealised				(16)
Fair value loss on other investments			
(21)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment			
–
Other income				
25

148
34
–
260
566

					
487

1,008

Company			
Loss on foreign exchange - unrealised			
Fair value loss on other investments			

20.

(370)
(30)

–
–

					
(400)

–

Finance costs
					2020
					RM’000
Group			
Interest expense			
- hire purchase borrowings				
- revolving credit				
- lease liabilities				

2019
RM’000

10
75
2,133

20
286
1,925

					2,218

2,231
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21.

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Group

Note
2020
		RM’000
Results from operating
activities are
arrived at after
charging:
Auditor’s remunerations:
Audit fees:
   - KPMG PLT		
132
   - Other firm		
51
Non-audit fees:
   - KPMG PLT		
10
   - Local affiliates of
   KPMG PLT		
–
  
- Other firm		–
Depreciation of:
   - plant and
   equipment		
5,289
   - right-of-use assets		
15,830
Amortisation of intangible
assets		301
Employee related expenses
(including key management
personnel):
- Salaries, wages and
  others
a
31,905
- Contributions to state
  plans		
3,037
Plant and equipment written
off			
188
Write-down of inventories		
34

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

112
25

35
–

30
–

745

10

733

66
101

–
–

66
–

4,175
16,656

–
–

–
–

217

–

–

36,570

215

–

4,150

–

–

87
–

–
–

–
–

Nota a
The Group was entitled to a wage subsidy programme introduced by the government of Malaysia in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic. The wage subsidy of the Group amounting to RM408,600 for the period of April
to June 2020 was recognised in profit or loss as a deduction against personnel expenses.
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22.

Tax expense
Recognised in profit or loss
Group

Note
2020
		RM’000
Income tax
- current year expense		
- under/(over) provision
in prior year		

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

7,127

11,170

–

–

118

(220)

–

–

			
7,245

10,950

–

–

Deferred tax expense
- origination and reversal
of temporary differences		
- under/(over) provision
in prior year		

107

(338)

–

–

86

(368)

–

–

		

193

(706)

–

–

Tax expense		
7,438

10,244

–

–

40,395

30,332

(4,184)

9,695
1,066

7,280
414

(1,004)
1,004

(179)

–

–

–

–

–

250
–

–
(7,694)

–
–

10,832

–

–

7

Reconciliation of tax expense
Profit/(Loss) before tax		27,621

Income tax using Malaysian
tax rate at 24%		
6,629
Non-deductible expenses		 477
Effect of foreign jurisdiction
tax rates		
(196)
Effect of income tax rate
concession in a foreign
jurisdiction		
(256)
Deferred tax assets not
recognised		681
Non-taxable Income		
(101)
			
7,234
Under/(Over) provision in
prior year
- current tax		
- deferred tax		

118
86

(220)
(368)

–
–

–
–

			

204

(588)

–

–

Tax expense		
7,438

10,244

–

–
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23.

Earnings per share (“EPS”)
Basic EPS of the Group is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the Company by
weighted average numbers of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.
For the dilutive earnings per share calculation, the average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic EPS computations:

		Group
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
			
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company			
20,183
30,151

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (‘000)		

695,937

368,191

Basic EPS (sen)				

2.90

8.19

Diluted earnings per ordinary share is not presented as the Group has no shares or other instruments with
potential dilutive effects as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020.
24.

Dividends
Dividends recognised by:
			
			
			

RM per
share
RM

Total
amount
RM’000

Company
2020 			
In respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2019:
- Single tier special dividend		
0.01
7,059

Date of payment

30 April 2020

				
In respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2020:				
- Single tier ordinary dividend		
0.01
7,059

15 January 2021

				
2019 			
In respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2018:				
- Second single tier ordinary dividend
4.00
10,000

30 August 2019

				
In respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2019:				
- Single tier ordinary dividend		
4.00
10,000

27 December 2019
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25.

Operating segments
The Group does not have reportable segments as the principal activities of entities within the Group are
essentially relate to the marketing of products under the franchise of “The Body Shop” and products of
“Natura”. The internal management reports consist of performance from respective entities and classified
into geographical segments of Malaysia, Vietnam and Cambodia. The Managing Director and Key Senior
Management of the Group review internal management reports on a monthly basis.
The following summary describes the geographical segments results:
•
•
•

Segment 1:
Segment 2:
Segment 3:

Includes West Malaysia, Sabah and Labuan.
Includes Vietnam.
Includes Cambodia.

Performance is measured based on segment profit after tax as included in the internal management reports.
Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is relevant
in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within the industry.
Segment assets
The total of segment assets is measured based on all assets (including intangible assets) of a segment, as
included in the internal management reports. Segment total assets is used to measure the return on assets
of each segment.
Segment liabilities
The total of segment liabilities is measured based on all liabilities of a segment, as included in the internal
management reports. Segment total liabilities is used to measure the gearing of each segment.
Geographical segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment profit is based on geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and liabilities are based on the geographical location of the assets
and liabilities.
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120,655

31,187

3,515

155,357

161,426

29,694

564

191,684

16,736

3,776

489

21,001

30,606

4,382

(526)

34,462

								
Included in the measure
of segment profit are:								
Finance income
174
189
71
434
324
80
–
404
Rental expenses
(352)
(449)
(415)
(1,216)
(3,490)
(740)
(86)
(4,316)
Employee related
expenses
(27,772)
(6,536)
(419)
(34,727)
(34,359)
(5,633)
(136)
(40,128)
Depreciation and
amortisation
(16,600)
(4,494)
(326)
(21,420)
(17,563)
(3,422)
(63)
(21,048)
Finance costs
(1,262)
(922)
(34)
(2,218)
(1,680)
(550)
(1)
(2,231)

		

								
Segment profit
after tax								
Existing business
16,736
3,776
489
21,001
31,761
4,382
–
36,143
New business
–
–
–
–
(1,155)
–
(526)
(1,681)

		

		
2020
2019
		
Malaysia
Vietnam
Cambodia
Total
Malaysia
Vietnam
Cambodia
Total
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
								
Revenue from
external customers
							
Existing business
120,655
31,187
3,515
155,357
161,026
29,694
–
190,720
New business
–
–
–
–
400
–
564
964

Geographical segments (continued)

Operating segments (continued)
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122,144

30,830

5,037

158,011

127,217

22,465

4,352

154,034

9,883

7,066

1,231

18,180

23,043

6,291

1,451

30,785

(30,741)

(10,725)

(920)

(42,386)

(55,584)

(9,777)

(2,098)

(67,459)

Existing business represents The Body Shop operations in Malaysia and Vietnam.
New business represents Natura operation in Malaysia and The Body Shop operation in Cambodia. Both commenced operations in 2019.

								
Included in the measure
of segment liabilities are:								
Loans and borrowings
(339)
–
–
(339)
(16,576)
–
–
(16,576)
Lease liabilities
(15,680)
(6,635)
(336)
(22,651)
(20,558)
(4,512)
(92)
(25,162)

		

								
Segment liabilities								
Existing business
(30,741)
(10,725)
(920)
(42,386)
(54,402)
(9,777)
–
(64,179)
New business
–
–
–
–
(1,182)
–
(2,098)
(3,280)

		

Included in the measure
of segment assets are:								
Additions to non-current
assets other than
financial instruments
and deferred tax assets:								
  Plant and equipment
1,477
2,035
959
4,471
5,852
4,952
1,082
11,886
  Right-of-use assets
8,406
4,943
272
13,621
16,141
830
97
17,068
  Intangible assets
–
88
–
88
1,050
509
272
1,831

		

		
2020
2019
		
Malaysia
Vietnam
Cambodia
Total
Malaysia
Vietnam
Cambodia
Total
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
								
Segment assets								
Existing business
122,144
30,830
5,037
158,011
122,748
22,465
–
145,213
New business
–
–
–
–
4,469
–
4,352
8,821

Geographical segments (continued)

Operating segments (continued)
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25.

Operating segments (continued)
Geographical segments (continued)
Major customers
There were no major customers with revenue equal or more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and other material items
					
Additions
					
to non			
Profit		
current
		
Revenue
after tax
Total assets
assets
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Group
2020
Total reportable
segments
Listing-related
expenses
Dividend payable
Other non-reportable
segment
Consolidated total

155,357

21,001

158,011

18,180

(42,386)

–
–

(959)
–

–
–

–
–

–
(7,059)

–

141

30,226

–

(116)

155,357

20,183

188,237

18,180

(49,561)

					
2019 				
Total reportable
segments
191,684
34,462
154,034
30,785
Listing-related
expenses
–
(3,591)
–
–
Other non-reportable
segment
–
(720)
1,363
–
Consolidated total

Total
liabilities
RM’000

191,684

30,151

155,397

30,785

(67,459)
–
(598)
(68,057)
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26.

Financial instruments
26.1 Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:
(a)
(b)

Amortised cost (“AC”)
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
				 Carrying
				
amount
				RM’000

AC
RM’000

FVTPL
RM’000

Group			
2020			
Financial assets			
Other investments			29,528
Receivables and deposits			
11,110
Cash and cash equivalents			
23,967

4,743
11,110
23,967

24,785
–
–

				64,605

39,820

24,785

Financial liabilities			
Loans and borrowings			
(339)
Payables and accruals			
(14,426)
Dividend payable			
(7,059)

(339)
(14,426)
(7,059)

–
–
–

				

(21,824)

(21,824)

–

			
2019			
Financial assets			
Other investments			46
Receivables and deposits			
11,387
Cash and cash equivalents			
17,445

46
11,387
17,445

–
–
–

				28,878

28,878

–

			
Financial liabilities
		
Loans and borrowings			
(16,576)
Payables and accruals			
(19,105)

(16,576)
(19,105)

–
–

				

(35,681)

–

(35,681)
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)
26.1 Categories of financial instruments (continued)
				 Carrying
				
amount
				RM’000

AC
RM’000

FVTPL
RM’000

Company			
2020			
Financial assets			
Other investments			22,758
Receivables and deposits			
1,189
Cash and cash equivalents			
7,438

–
1,189
7,438

22,758
–
–

				31,385

8,627

22,758

			
Financial liabilities			
Payables and accruals			
(107)
Dividend payable			
(7,059)

(107)
(7,059)

–
–

				

(7,166)

(7,166)

–

2019			
Financial assets			
Receivables and deposits			
6,602
Cash and cash equivalents			
1,349

6,602
1,349

–
–

				7,951

7,951

–

			
Financial liabilities			
Payables and accruals			
(31,590)

(31,590)

–

26.2 Net gains and (losses) arising from financial instruments
Group

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Net gains/(losses) arising on:
Financial assets at amortised
cost		923
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost		
558

407

631

–

(124)

(370)

–

			
1,481
283
261
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss					
- Mandatorily required by MFRS 9
(21)
–
(30)

–

			
1,460

–

283

231

–
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)
26.3 Financial risk management
The Group and the Company have exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:
•
•
•

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

26.4 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group or the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
principally from its receivables from customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally
from advances to subsidiaries and financial guarantees given to banks and landlords for banking and
credit facilities granted to subsidiaries.
Receivables
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
Management has an informal credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored by the
management on an ongoing basis.
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the trade receivables are credit impaired.
The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade receivables are written off (either partially or full)
when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. Nevertheless, trade receivables that are written off could
still be subject to debt recovery activities.
There are no significant changes as compared to previous year.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
is represented by the carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.
Concentration of credit risk
The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period by geographic
region was:
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Group			
Malaysia				1,417
Vietnam				1,627
Cambodia				271

1,194
2,021
163

					3,315

3,378
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Financial instruments (continued)
26.4 Credit risk (continued)
Receivables (continued)
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
The ageing of trade receivables as at the end of reporting period was:
					
Loss
				
Gross
allowance
Group			RM’000
RM’000
2020 		
Not past due			
2,694
–
Past due 1-180 days			
621
–

Net
RM’000
2,694
621

				3,315

–

3,315

			
2019 		
Not past due			
Past due 1-180 days			

3,099
279

–
–

3,099
279

				3,378

–

3,378

Trade receivables of the Group comprise amounts due from banks for credit or debit card transactions,
as well as amounts due from department stores and other third-party retail space providers in relation
to sales generated from these distribution channels. Generally, trade receivables will be repaid within 90
days. In managing the credit risk of trade receivables, the key senior management of the Group monitor
past due debts on a monthly basis. The Group will initiate a structured debt recovery process should
there be indicators where the debts owing by a trade debtor may not be fully recoverable. Should a
structured debt recovery process is not possible, the Group will commence a legal proceeding against
the trade debtor.
The Group measures expected credit loss (“ECL”) of trade receivables individually. Consistent with the
debt recovery process, invoices of which the trade debtor has defaulted on debt recovery arrangements
are generally considered as credit impaired.
Loss rates are determined for each trade debtor using the past payment trends.
The directors of the Group are of the opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect
of the receivables as there has not been significant change in the credit quality of the debtors and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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Financial instruments (continued)
26.4 Credit risk (continued)
Inter-company balances
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Company provides advances to subsidiaries. The Company monitors the ability of the subsidiaries
to repay the advances on an individual basis.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their
carrying amounts in the statement of financial position of the Company.
Advances provided are not secured by any collateral or supported by any other credit enhancements.
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
Generally, the Company considers advances to the subsidiaries that have low credit risk. The
Company assumes that there is a significant increase in credit risk when the subsidiary’s financial
position deteriorates significantly. As the Company is able to determine the timing of payments of the
subsidiaries’ advances when they are payable, the Company considers the advances to be in default
when the subsidiaries are not able to pay when demanded. The Company considers the subsidiaries’
advances to be credit impaired when:
•
•

The subsidiary is unlikely to repay its advances to the Company in full; and
The subsidiary is continuously loss making and is having a deficit shareholders’ fund.

The Company determines the probability of default for these advances individually using internal
information available.
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for subsidiary’s
advances.
				
Gross
				 carrying
Loss
				
amount
allowance
Company			RM’000
RM’000
2020					
Low credit risk			
1,184
–
					
2019					
Low credit risk			
6,596
–

Net
balance
RM’000
1,184

6,596

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not recognise any allowance for impairment
losses.
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Financial instruments (continued)
26.4 Credit risk (continued)
Financial guarantees
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Company provides financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to the
subsidiary. The Company monitors on an ongoing basis the results of the subsidiary and repayments
made by the subsidiary.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk as represented by the
outstanding banking and credit facilities of the subsidiary are as follows:
					2020
					RM’000
Company			
Corporate guarantees granted to a subsidiary
for credit facilities				
Bank guarantees granted to subsidiaries for tenancy agreements

2019
RM’000

1,000
862

1,000
874

					1,862

1,874

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
The Company assumes that there is a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary’s financial
position deteriorates significantly. The Company considers a financial guarantee to be credit impaired
when:
•
•

The subsidiary is unlikely to repay its credit obligation to the bank in full; or
The subsidiary is continuously loss making and is having a deficit shareholders’ fund.

The Company determines the probability of default of the guaranteed amounts individually using internal
information available.
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiary would default on
repayment. Accordingly, the financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial
recognition was not material.
Cash and cash equivalents
The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions. As at the end of the
reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the
statements of financial position.
These banks and financial institutions have low credit risks. In addition, some of the bank balances are
insured by government agencies. Consequently, the Group and the Company are of the view that the
loss allowance is not material and hence, it is not provided for.
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Financial instruments (continued)
26.4 Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables
Credit risks on other receivables mainly arise from deposits paid for outlets. These deposits will be
received at the end of lease terms of the outlets.
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their
carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not recognise any allowance for impairment losses.
Other investments
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
Investments are allowed only in liquid securities and highly liquid investments and only with counterparties
that have a credit rating equal to or better than the Company. Transactions involving derivative financial
instruments are with approved financial institutions.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has only invested in domestic securities and highly
liquid investments. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts in the
statement of financial position.
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that the investments are not recoverable.
26.5 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will not be able to meet their financial obligations
as and when they fall due. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally
from their various payables and loans and borrowings.
The Group and the Company monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank
facilities deemed adequate by the management to ensure, as far as possible, that they will have sufficient
liquidity to meet their liabilities as and when they fall due.
It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier
or at significantly different amounts.
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–

		

60,843		

63,827

51,064

9,402

3,361

–
–
–
–

							
2019							
Hire purchase borrowings
576
1.22% - 4.47%
602
316
286
–
Revolving credit
16,000 1.60%+1-month KLIBOR
16,000
16,000
–
–
Payables and accruals
19,105
–
19,105
19,105
–
–
Lease liabilities
25,162
5.03% - 9.34%
28,120
15,643
9,116
3,361

7,176

–

35,515

3,304

45,995

		

44,475		

–
–
–
–

Group							
2020							
Hire purchase borrowings
339
2.20%
354
163
191
–
Dividend payable
7,059
–
7,059
7,059
–
–
Payables and accruals
14,426
–
14,426
14,426
–
–
Lease liabilities
22,651
3.74% - 9.34%
24,156
13,867
6,985
3,304

1-2
years
RM’000

More than
5 years
RM’000

Under 1
year
RM’000

2-5
years
RM’000

			 Contractual
			
Interest rate/
		
Carrying
Coupon/
Contractual
		
amount
discount rate
cash flow
		
RM’000		
RM’000

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities and lease liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments:

Maturity analysis

26.5 Liquidity risk (continued)
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26.

Under 1
year
RM’000

1-2
years
RM’000

2-5
years
RM’000

More than
5 years
RM’000

–

–

–

33,464

		

31,590		33,464

–
–
–

296

							
2019 						
Payables and accruals
31,590
–
31,590
31,590
–
–
Corporate guarantees
–
–
1,000
1,000
–
–
Bank guarantees
–
–
874
874
–
–

8,732

–

7,166		 9,028

–

		

Company							
2020 						
Dividend payable
7,059
–
7,059
7,059
–
–
–
Payables and accruals
107
–
107
107
–
–
–
Corporate guarantees
–
–
1,000
1,000
–
–
–
Bank guarantees
–
–
862
566
296
–
–

			 Contractual
			
Interest rate/
		
Carrying
Coupon/
Contractual
		
amount
discount rate
cash flow
		
RM’000		
RM’000

Maturity analysis (continued)

26.5 Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Annual Report 2020 I I N N A T U R E B E R H A D

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

123

124

I N N A T U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26.

Financial instruments (continued)
26.6 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
other prices that will affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.
26.6.1 Interest rate risk
		The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates to its loans and borrowings and interest-earning
financial assets from deposits placed with financial institutions.
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The management monitors closely the prevailing interest rates at regular intervals and ensure
that the Group obtains competitive rates for its banking facilities, interest earning deposits and
loans and borrowings.
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments, based
on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period were:

		Group
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000
Fixed rate instruments			
Financial assets
		
Other investments				
4,743
Cash and cash equivalents			
1,074

46
–

						
5,817

46

		
Financial liabilities 		
Hire purchase borrowings			
(339)
Revolving credit				–
Lease liabilities				
(22,651)

(576)
(16,000)
(25,162)

						
(22,990)

(41,738)

						
17,173

(41,692)

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair
value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (continued)
26.6 Market risk (continued)
26.6.2 Currency risk (continued)
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than its functional currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the United
States Dollar (“USD”) and Great Britain Pound (“GBP”).
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and will
use forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk when necessary. Forward
exchange contracts, if any, would have maturities of less than one year. Where necessary, the
forward exchange contracts are rolled over at maturity.
The Group’s primary exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the functional
currency of the Group entities) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting
period was:
2020
Denominated in
				USD
GBP
				RM’000
RM’000
Trade payables,
	  representing exposure
	  in the statements
	  of financial position

(655)

(5,809)

2019
Denominated in
USD
GBP
RM’000
RM’000

(609)

(9,744)

Currency risk sensitivity analysis
A 10% (2019: 10%) strengthening of the RM against the following currencies at the end of the
reporting period would have increased post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular profit rates, remain constant.
		
Profit or loss
						2020
2019
						RM’000
RM’000
Group			
USD				50
GBP				441

46
741

A 10% (2019: 10%) weakening of RM against the above currencies at the end of the reporting
period would have had an equal but opposite effect on the post-tax profit or loss, on the basis
that all other variables remained constant.
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26.

Financial instruments (continued)
26.7 Fair value information
The carrying amounts of other investment, cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables, short
term borrowings and payables reasonably approximate their fair values due to the relatively short term
nature of these financial instruments.
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value shown in the statements of financial
position.
		
Fair value of
		
financial
		
instruments
		
carried at fair
		
value
					
Total fair
				
Level 1
value
				RM’000
RM’000

Carrying
amount
RM’000

Group			
2020			
Financial assets			
Other investments			24,785

24,785

24,785

			
Company			
2020			
Financial assets			
Other investments			22,758

22,758

22,758

Level 1 fair value
Level 1 fair value is derived from quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
27.

Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business.
A subsidiary of the Group is required to comply with the following covenants:
(i)

Maintains a gearing ratio (defined as total external borrowings divided by the sum of tangible net worth,
where tangible net worth represents equity attributable to owners of the company less intangible assets)
not more than 1 time; and

(ii)

Does not declare or pay dividends in excess of 50% of its profit after tax in a financial year.

In respect of (i), the gearing ratios of the subsidiary as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were
0.4 times and 0.8 times respectively.
In respect of (ii), the subsidiary declared dividends in excess of 50% of its profit after tax for financial year
2019. A waiver was obtained from the bank on 13 November 2019. No dividend was declared for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020.
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28.

Related parties
Identity of related parties
Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the parties are subject to common control
or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or bodies corporate.
Related parties also include key management personnel defined as individuals having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, either directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel include all the Directors of the Group and certain members of senior management
of the Group.
Significant related transactions
The significant related party transactions of the Group and the Company are shown below. The balances
related to the below transactions are shown in Notes 8 and 16.
Group

			2020
		
Note
RM’000
Companies in which
certain Directors of
the Company
have interests
Rental of event space
Rental of office and retail
outlets

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

a

35

–

35

–

b

485

511

–

–

			520

511

35

–

Key management
personnel
Directors’ emoluments:
Fees		215
Remuneration		1,192

192
1,126

215
–

192
336

			1,407
Other emoluments		234

1,318
392

215
–

528
64

			1,641

1,710

215

592

Other key management
personnel:
Remuneration		1,288
Other emoluments		158

2,110
163

–
–

–
–

			1,446

2,273

–

–

			3,087

3,983

215

592
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28.

Related parties (continued)
Significant related transactions (continued)
Note a:
The Company rented the event space from an entity in which certain Directors of the Company have interests,
for the launch event of its IPO Prospectus on 29 January 2020. The transaction was entered into in the normal
course of business under normal trade terms.
Note b:
The Group entered into rental agreements with an entity in which certain Directors of the Company have
interests, for the letting of office and retail outlets in Malaysia. The rental rates are based on a third-party
valuation on the market rental carried out by a registered property valuer.

29.

Capital commitments

		
Group
					2020
2019
					RM’000
RM’000

30.

Plant and equipment 				
Approved but not contracted for				
28,337
Contracted but not commenced				
227

34,500
–

					28,564

34,500

				
Leases as a leasee				
Contracted but not commenced				
2,485

4,054

Comparative figures
The comparative figures for certain items in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform with
current year's presentation. The changes were as follow:
						
As
					
As
previously
					
restated
stated
					RM’000
RM’000
2019				
Group				
Statement of comprehensive income 				
Distribution expenses				3,063
Other operating expenses				
9,714

4,747
8,030
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31.

Significant changes in accounting policies
Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
The Group and the Company have early adopted Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases – Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions issued on 28 May 2020. The amendment introduces an optional practical expedient for leases
in which the Group or the Company is a lessee – i.e. for leases to which the Group or the Company applies
the practical expedient, the Group or the Company is not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions
that are a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if
all of the following conditions are met:
–

the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

–

any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and

–

there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group and the Company have applied the amendment retrospectively. As the Group and the Company
have elected to apply the practical expedient, this amendment has no impact on retained earnings at 1
January 2020.
Impact on financial statements
The Group negotiated rent concessions with its landlords as a result of the impact of COVID-19 pandemic
during the year. The Group applied the practical expedient for COVID-19-related rent concessions consistently
to eligible rent concessions.
The amount recognised in the Group’s profit or loss for the reporting period to reflect changes in lease payments
arising from rent concessions to which the Group has applied the practical expedient for COVID-19-related
rent concessions is RM2,698,000. The early adoption of Amendment to MFRS 16 does not have any impact
to the Company.
32.

Significant event during the year
Effect of coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic
The COVID-19 pandemic was announced by the World Health Organisation in March 2020 given the outbreak
of the virus in countries across the world. The pandemic caused various macro-economic impact and
disruptions to businesses, including reduced customer traffic, reduction of store operating hours as well as
store closures where mandated by the governments. As a result of these disruptions, the Group recorded
lower sales by 19% and lesser profit before tax by 32% in financial year ended 31 December 2020.
In response to the COVID-19 challenges, the Group has been adaptive in managing its operations, given the
evolving situation.
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Statement by Directors

pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 63 to 129 are drawn up in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
of the Company as of 31 December 2020 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year
then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Dato’ Foong Choong Heng
Director

Datin Cheah Kim Choo
Director

Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan
Date: 28 April 2021

Statutory declaration

pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Chia Cang Yang, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of InNature Berhad, do solemnly
and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 63 to 129 are, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by
virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Chia Cang Yang, NRIC: 820703-01-6361, MIA CA34250,
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory on 28 April 2021.

Chia Cang Yang

Before me:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF INNATURE BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of InNature Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2020 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as
set out on pages 63 to 129.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Valuation of intangible assets - Goodwill
Refer to Note 2(f) – Significant accounting policy: Intangible assets and Note 6 to the financial statements.
The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We focused on this area due to the significance of the
balance and the level of judgement required to estimate
the recoverable amount of the cash generating units
(“CGUs”). The Group is required to perform annual
impairment test of the CGUs to which intangible assets
have been allocated to. Estimating the value-in-use
of CGUs involves estimating the future cash inflows
and outflows that will be derived from the CGUs, and
discounting them at an appropriate rate.

In addressing this area of audit focus, our audit
procedures included, amongst others:
–

Obtained an understanding and assessed the
Group’s internal control over the estimations of
recoverable amounts of the CGUs;

–

Assessed the reliability of the Group’s forecasting
process by comparing previous forecast to the
actual results;

–

Evaluated the assumptions applied on revenue
growth, cost escalation rate, terminal value and
discount rates by comparing the assumptions with
internally derived information and external market
data;

–

Analysed the sensitivity of the key assumptions
by assessing the impact of changes to the
recoverable amounts; and

–

Evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
of key assumptions used in estimations.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Accuracy and valuation of inventories
Refer to Note 2(g) – Significant accounting policy: Inventories and Note 9 to the financial statements
The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We focused on this area due to:

In addressing this area of audit focus, our audit
procedures included, amongst others:

–

the significance of the balance;
–

–

the complexity of costing computation which
affects the accuracy of inventories; and

Obtained an understanding and assessed the
Group’s internal control in place to track, monitor
and record inventories movements;

–

the level of judgement required to assess the –
amount of provision needed to record the value
of the inventories at the lower of cost and net
realizable value and inventories that are slow –
moving.

Attended physical inventories count at selected
locations;

–

Performed testing on net realizable value (NRV)
by ascertaining that the inventories are stated at
the lower of cost and NRV; and

–

We challenged the adequacy of provision for slow
moving inventories by comparing our expectation
based on our knowledge against write down made
by management in accordance to the Group’s
policy.

Assessed whether costs of sampled trading
inventories are appropriate by checking to supplier
invoices and performed computation check over
the inventories costing;

We have determined that there is no key audit matter in the audit of the financial statements of the Company to be
communicated in our Auditors’ report.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors’ Report (but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, and the
remaining parts of the annual report, which are expected to be made available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we read the remaining parts of the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the Directors of the Company and take appropriate actions
in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.

133

134

I N N A T U R E B E R H A D I Annual Report 2020

Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also
responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the ability of the Group and of the Company to continue as going concerns, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the internal control of the Group and of the Company.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our auditors’ report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiary of which
we have not acted as auditors is disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.
Other Matter
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

KPMG PLT
(LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758)
Chartered Accountants
Petaling Jaya
Date: 28 April 2021

Foong Mun Kong
Approval Number: 02613/12/2022 J
Chartered Accountant
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Analysis of Shareholdings
As at 31 March 2021

Class of shares
Issued Shares
Voting rights

:
:
:

Ordinary Shares (“Shares”)
705,881,488 Shares
One vote per shareholder on a show of hands or One vote per share on a poll

ANALYSIS OF LISTED SECURITIES BY SIZE OF HOLDINGS AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
(WITHOUT AGGREGATING SECURITIES FROM DIFFERENT SECURITIES ACCOUNT BELONGING TO THE SAME
PERSON)
		
Size of holding		

No. of
Shareholders

% of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares

% of Issued
Share Capital

Less than 100		
100 to 1,000		
1,001 to 10,000		
10,001 to 100,000		
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares		

18
443
1,145
537
168
2

0.78
19.15
49.50
23.22
7.26
0.09

280
260,119
6,131,300
18,022,861
195,217,328
486,249,600

0.00
0.04
0.87
2.55
27.66
68.88

Total		 2,313

100.00

705,881,488

100.00

30 LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
(WITHOUT AGGREGATING SECURITIES FORM DIFFERENT SECURITIES ACCOUNT BELONGING TO THE SAME
PERSON)
		
No. Holder Name
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.

ETHECO SDN. BHD.
BLUPLANET SDN. BHD
PELAGOS SDN. BHD
PRIMARIUM SDN. BHD.
DB (MALAYSIA) NOMINEE (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
DEUTSCHE TRUSTEES MALAYSIA BERHAD FOR EASTSPRING
INVESTMENTSSMALL-CAP FUND
CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
KUMPULAN WANG PERSARAAN (DIPERBADANKAN)
(AFFIN ABSR EQ)
AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD
ASN UMBRELLA FOR ASN SARA (MIXED ASSET CONSERVATIVE) 1
AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD
ASN IMBANG (MIXED ASSET BALANCED) 1
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
ETIQA LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD (PREM EQUITY)
AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD
ASN UMBRELLA FOR ASN IMBANG (MIXED ASSET BALANCED) 2
TOKIO MARINE LIFE INSURANCE MALAYSIA BHD
AS BENEFICIAL OWNER (PF)
AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD
ASN EQUITY 2

No. of
Shares

% of Issued
Share Capital

360,000,000
126,249,600
21,078,944
21,078,944
14,239,800

51.00
17.89
2.99
2.99
2.02

11,644,000

1.65

6,060,000

0.86

5,608,800

0.79

5,095,400

0.72

5,032,900

0.71

4,760,000

0.67

4,466,900

0.63
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Analysis of Shareholdings (continued)

30 LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS AS AT 31 MARCH 2021 (continued)
(WITHOUT AGGREGATING SECURITIES FORM DIFFERENT SECURITIES ACCOUNT BELONGING TO THE SAME
PERSON)
		
No. Holder Name
13.

14.
15.
16.

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

HSBC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
HSBC (M) TRUSTEE BHD FOR PERTUBUHAN KESELAMATAN
SOSIAL (UOB AMM6939-406)
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
ETIQA LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD (LIFE PAR)
AMANAHRAYA TRUSTEES BERHAD
ASN EQUITY 5
UOBM NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
UOB ASSET MANAGEMENT (MALAYSIA) BERHAD FOR GIBRALTAR
BSN AGGRESSIVE FUND
TOKIO MARINE LIFE INSURANCE MALAYSIA BHD
AS BENEFICIAL OWNER (TMEF)
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
ETIQA GENERAL INSURANCE BERHAD (GENERAL)
CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB FOR NG SHIH FANG (PB)
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
NATIONAL TRUST FUND (IFM EASTSPRING) (410140)
DB (MALAYSIA) NOMINEE (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
DEUTSCHE TRUSTEES MALAYSIA BERHAD FOR UNITED
MALAYSIA FUND
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
ETIQA FAMILY TAKAFUL BERHAD (DANA EKUITI)
CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
UBS AG SINGAPORE FOR TAN YU YEH
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CEKD VENTURE SDN BHD
CARTABAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
AIG MALAYSIA INSURANCE BERHAD
CARTABAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PAMB FOR PRULINK EQUITY INCOME FUND
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
MAYBANK TRUSTEES BERHAD FOR DANA MAKMUR PHEIM (211901)
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHOOI SEK HOO
MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
ETIQA LIFE INSURANCE BERHAD (LIFE NON PAR)
MOHD AZRUL BIN ZAKARIA
TOTAL

			

No. of
Shares

% of Issued
Share Capital

4,400,000

0.62

4,065,000

0.58

4,000,000

0.57

3,793,500

0.54

3,462,000

0.49

2,157,200

0.31

2,025,439

0.29

1,979,200

0.28

1,950,000

0.28

1,785,900

0.25

1,689,400

0.24

1,515,500

0.21

1,500,000

0.21

1,491,000

0.21

1,287,000

0.18

1,201,000

0.17

1,152,000

0.16

1,134,700

0.16

625,904,127

88.67
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Analysis of Shareholdings (continued)

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY
(AS PER REGISTER OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 31 MARCH 2021)
Name		
Direct
Dato’ Simon Foong Choong Heng		
–
Datin Mina Cheah Kim Choo		
–
Dato’ Maznah Binti Abdul Jalil		
400,000
Molly Fong Hui Sain		
373,500
Tengku Datin Paduka Setia Zatashah
Binti Sultan Sharufuddin		
100,000
Daryl Foong Chuen Hoe
(Alternate Director to Dato’ Simon Foon
Choong Heng)		–

No. of Ordinary Shares held
%
Indirect

%

–
–
0.06
0.05

507,328,544(1)
528,407,488(2)
–
–

71.87
74.86
–
–

0.01

–

–

–

21,078,944(3)

2.99

Notes: (1)

Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in Etheco Sdn. Bhd., BluPlanet Sdn. Bhd. and Primarium Sdn.
Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

(2)

Deemed interested by virtue of her interest in Etheco Sdn. Bhd., BluPlanet Sdn. Bhd. and Pelagos Sdn.
Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016, and by virtue of her interest in Primarium Sdn. Bhd.
pursuant to Section 59 of the Companies Act 2016.

(3)

Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in Pelagos Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act
2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
(AS PER REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31 MARCH 2021)
Name		
Direct

No. of Shares held
%
Indirect

Etheco Sdn. Bhd.		
BluPlanet Sdn. Bhd.		
Dato’ Simon Foong Choong Heng		
Datin Mina Cheah Kim Choo		

51.00
17.89
–
–

360,000,000
126,249,600
–
–

–
–
507,328,544(1)
507,328,544(2)

%
–
–
71.87
71.87

Notes:(1)

Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in Etheco Sdn. Bhd., Bluplanet Sdn. Bhd. and Primarium Sdn.
Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

(2)

Deemed interested by virtue of her interest in Etheco Sdn. Bhd., Bluplanet Sdn. Bhd. and Pelagos Sdn. Bhd.
pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

(1)

Utilisation of Proceeds from Corporate Exercise
The Company was listed on Main Market of Bursa Securities on 20 February 2020. The utilisation of the IPO
proceeds as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Utilisation of proceeds

i)

Capital Expenditure

ii)

Working Capital

iii)
iv)

Proposed
Utilisation

Actual
utilisation
up to 31
December
2020

Transfer

Balance
unutilised

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

Estimated
timeframe
for
utilisation
from the
date of
Listing

34,500

(5,936)

–

28,564

Within 48
months

837

(811)

351

377

Within 36
months

New Business Development

5,700

(2,639)

–

3,061

Within 48
months

Listing-related Expenses

6,370

(6,019)

(351)

–

Within 3
months

47,407

(15,405)

–

32,002

TOTAL

The utilisation of proceeds as disclosed above should be read in conjunction with the IPO Prospectus dated
29 January 2020, and the Company’s announcement on 18 February 2020.
The unutilised balance of RM351,000 allocated for listing-related expenses had been transferred to working
capital during the financial year.
(2)

Sanctions and/or Penalties
There were no material public sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company or its subsidiaries, Directors
and Management by the relevant bodies during 2020.

(3)

Audit and Non-audit Fees
The amount of audit and non-audit fees paid and payable by the Company and the Group to its external
auditors in 2020 are as follows:
Company
RM’000

Group
RM’000

Audit fees

35

183

Non-audit fees
Review of Statement on Risk Management and Internal
	 Control

10

10

Total

45

193

Description
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Additional Compliance Information (continued)

(4)

Material contracts involving directors or major shareholders
Other than the related party transactions disclosed at page 127 to 128 of this Annual Report, there was no
material contract entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries involving directors or major shareholders
during 2020.
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NOTICE OF THE 26TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held entirely through
live streaming from the broadcast venue at Level 2, TM Convention Centre, Jalan Pantai Baharu, 50672 Kuala
Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia on Wednesday, 2 June 2021 at 10.00 a.m. to transact the
following businesses:
AGENDA
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 together with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon.

(Please refer to Note 1)

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees up to an amount of RM150,000 from
3 June 2021 until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Ordinary Resolution 1

3.

To approve the payment of Directors’ benefits to Non-Executive Directors up to
an amount of RM80,000 from 3 June 2021 until the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

Ordinary Resolution 2

4.

To re-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with the Company’s
Constitution:
(a)
(b)

Dato’ Maznah Binti Abdul Jalil
Fong Hui Sain

Ordinary Resolution 3
Ordinary Resolution 4

5.

To re-appoint KPMG PLT as Auditors of the Company and authorise the Directors
to determine their remuneration.

Ordinary Resolution 5

6.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolution, with or
without modifications:

Ordinary Resolution 6

AUTHORITY TO ALLOT SHARES PURSUANT TO SECTION 75 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT 2016
“THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) and the approvals of
the relevant authorities, the Directors be and are hereby authorised pursuant
to Section 75 of the Act, to allot shares in the Company at any time until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting upon such terms and conditions
and for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem
fit provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this
Resolution does not exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company for the time being.”
7.

To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

SEOW FEI SAN (CCM Practising Certificate 201908002299)
LOH LAI LING (CCM Practising Certificate 201908002445)
Secretaries
Petaling Jaya
11 May 2021
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NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF THE 26TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:
1.

The members’ approval on the Audited Financial Statements is not required pursuant to the provision of
Section 340(1) of the Companies Act 2016 and hence, the matter will not be put for voting.

2.

Please refer to the Administrative Guide for the procedures to register and participate and vote in the virtual
Annual General Meeting.

3.

In view of the Covid-19 pandemic and Government of Malaysia’s official guidance on social distancing, the
26th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be held fully virtual and entirely via remote participation and voting.
All shareholders are advised to participate in the 26th AGM remotely by registering at:
i.

Members’ E-Registration: https://cutt.ly/ibwze7T
OR

ii.

Proxies’ E-Registration https://cutt.ly/Vbi647c

4.

The broadcast venue of the 26th AGM is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the
Companies Act 2016 which requires the Chairman of the Meeting to be at the main venue. No members /
proxy(ies) from the public will be physically present at the broadcast venue.

5.

A member of the Company entitled to participate and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or
proxies to participate and vote on his / her behalf. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.
The members may submit their questions at corpcomm@innature.com.my before the Meeting or during live
streaming using the query box to Board of Directors.

6.

A member may appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend the Meeting. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies,
he / she shall specify the proportions of his / her holdings to be represented by each proxy.

7.

Where a member of the Company is an Authorised Nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central
Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2) proxies in respect
of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said
securities account.

8.

Where a member of the Company is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the
Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the
number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account
it holds.

9.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly
authorised in writing, or if the appointer is a corporation, either under its Common Seal or under the hand of
its officer or attorney duly authorised.

10.

The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Poll Administrator’s office at 54B,
Damai Complex, Jalan Lumut, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, alternatively to be submitted electronically,
through corpcomm@innature.com.my, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the
meeting or at any adjournment thereof, otherwise, the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

11.

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 24
May 2021 (General Meeting Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies)
to attend and / or vote on his / her behalf.

12.

Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29(A) of of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market Listing Requirements, all
the resolutions at the 26th AGM of the Company shall be put to vote by way of poll.
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Explanatory Notes:
Ordinary Resolutions 1 and 2
Directors’ fees and benefits payable to Non-Executive Directors
Pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016, the fees of the directors and any benefits payable to the
directors of a listed company and its subsidiaries shall be approved at a general meeting. In this respect, the Board of
Directors (“Board”) agreed that the members’ approval shall be sought at the 26th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
on the Directors’ fees and benefits in two (2) resolutions as follows:
•

Ordinary Resolution 1 on payment of Directors’ fees from 3 June 2021 until the next AGM
The total amount of Directors’ fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors from 3 June 2021 until the next
AGM tabled for the members’ approval is RM150,000. The figure is calculated with the assumption that there
is no adjustment to the Directors’ fees and no change in the Board size during the aforesaid period.

•

Ordinary Resolution 2 on payment of Directors’ benefits from 3 June 2021 until the next AGM
The Directors’ benefits are essentially meeting allowance to Non-Executive Directors for attendance of
meetings of the Board, Board Committees and general meetings, allowance to Senior Independent Director,
and allowances to Independent Directors for participation in Board Committees.

The Board will seek shareholders’ approval at the next AGM in the event the amount of Directors’ fees and benefits
is insufficient due to an increase in Board size and/or number of meetings.
Ordinary Resolution 6
Authority to Allot Shares Pursuant to Section 75 of the Companies Act 2016
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 6, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to allot not more than
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company subject to approvals of all the relevant governmental
and/or other regulatory bodies and for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the interest of the
Company. This authorisation will, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, expire at the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
As at the date of printing of this Annual Report, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the authority
granted to the Directors at the last Annual General Meeting held on 19 August 2020 and which will lapse at the
conclusion of the 26th AGM.
The authority will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including but not limited
to further placing of shares, for purpose of funding future investment project(s), working capital, repayment of bank
borrowing and/or acquisitions.
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CDS Account No.

No. of Shares Held

INNATURE BERHAD
Registration No. 199401034915 (320598-X)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM
I/We

(BLOCK LETTERS)

NRIC No. /Company No.

of

being (a) Member(s) of INNATURE BERHAD, Registration No. 199401034915 (320598-X) hereby appoint the
following person(s):
Full Name (in Block)

NRIC/Passport No.

Address

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

%

Email Address
Mobile Phone No.
and/or
Full Name (in Block)

NRIC/Passport No.

Address

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

%

Email Address
Mobile Phone No.
or failing him/her, THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the
26th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held fully virtual at Level 2, TM Convention Centre, Jalan Pantai
Baharu, 50672 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia on Wednesday, 2 June 2021 at 10.00
a.m. and at any adjournment thereof and to vote as indicated below:RESOLUTION NO.

FOR

AGAINST

Ordinary Resolution 1
Ordinary Resolution 2
Ordinary Resolution 3
Ordinary Resolution 4
Ordinary Resolution 5
Ordinary Resolution 6
(Please indicate with an ‘X’ in the space above on how you wish to cast your vote. In the absence of specific
directions, your proxy will vote or abstain as he/she thinks fit.)

✄

Signed this

day of

2021

Signature / Seal of Member

Notes:
1.

2.
3.

4.

5.

6.

The members’ approvals on the Audited Financial Statements is not
required pursuant to the provision of Section 340(1) of the Companies
Act 2016 and hence, the matter will not be put for voting.
Please refer to the Administrative Guide for the procedures to register
and participate and vote in the virtual Annual General Meeting.
In view of the Covid-19 pandemic and Government of Malaysia’s
official guidance on social distancing, the 26th Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) will be held fully virtual and entirely via remote participation
and voting. All shareholders are advised to participate in the 26th AGM
remotely by registering at:
i.
Members’ E-Registration: https://cutt.ly/ibwze7T
OR
ii.
Proxies’ E-Registration https://cutt.ly/Vbi647c

7.

The venue of the 26th AGM is strictly for the purpose of complying with
Section 327(2) of the Companies Act 2016 which requires the Chairman
of the Meeting to be at the main venue. No members / proxy(ies) from
the public will be physically present at the venue.
A member of the Company entitled to participate and vote at the
Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to participate and
vote on his / her behalf. A proxy may but need not be a member of the
Company. The members may submit their questions at corpcomm@
innature.com.my before the Meeting or during live streaming using the
query box to Board of Directors.
A member may appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend the Meeting.
Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, he / she shall specify the
proportions of his / her holdings to be represented by each proxy.

10.

8.

9.

11.

12.

Where a member of the Company is an Authorised Nominee as defined
under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may
appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2) proxies in
respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the
Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.
Where a member of the Company is an Exempt Authorised Nominee
which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial
owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no
limit to the number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee
may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand
of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the
appointer is a corporation, either under its Common Seal or under the
hand of its officer or attorney duly authorised.
The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the
Poll Administrator’s office at 54B, Damai Complex, Jalan Lumut, 50400
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, alternatively to be submitted electronically,
through corpcomm@innature.com.my, not less than forty-eight (48)
hours before the time for holding the meeting or at any adjournment
thereof, otherwise, the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.
In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names
appear on the Record of Depositors on 24 May 2021 (General Meeting
Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint
proxy(ies) to attend and / or vote on his / her behalf.
Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29(A) of of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Main Market Listing Requirements, all the resolutions at the 26th AGM
of the Company shall be put to vote by way of poll.
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